
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting, Tuesday, 5th February, 2019
      at 2.30 pm (Drawing Room)

Site Visits

2018/0364 – Crooklands Garden Centre, Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-Furness
2018/0610 – Land Adjacent to Proposed Training Facility, Buccleuch Dock Road

Depart Town Hall Courtyard at 1.00 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  



5.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 15th January, 2019.

5 - 18

6.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members  

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  19 - 28

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached) 
 

  29 - 128

(D) 9.  Quarterly Planning Performance Report 
 

129 - 148

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30p.m.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors M A Thomson (Chair)
Thomson (Vice-Chair)
Blezard
Derbyshire
Gawne
Husband
McEwan
Mcleavy
Murphy
Murray
Seward
Thurlow



For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 28th January, 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 15th January, 2019
at 2.30 p.m. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chair), C. Thomson (Vice-Chair), Blezard, 
Gawne, Husband, R. McClure, Murray, Seward and Sweeney.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith 
(Principal Planning Officer), Gordon Robson (Enforcement Officer), Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic 
Services Officer).

268 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors McEwan, McLeavy, 
Murphy and Thurlow.

Councillors R. McClure and Sweeney had attended as a substitute for Councillors 
McLeavy and McEwan respectively for this meeting only.

269 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 4th December, 2018 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

270 – Quarterly Enforcement Report

The Planning Enforcement Officer submitted a report regarding enforcement activity 
and investigation over the period July - December 2018 which had produced a mix of 
enforcement challenges for the section but using negotiation and multi agency 
approaches, solutions had been found to most situations with a minimum drain on 
Council resources.  It was noted that this was the first full quarter since the 
Enforcement Officer’s hours had been increased to four days from three.

The department continued to receive a mix of complaints relating to several aspects 
of legislative control.  Those that were related to other legislation had been passed 
across to colleagues in the relevant section or other organisations such as Cumbria 
County Council. 

In terms of the planning complaints some could be quickly resolved but quite often 
there were issues which required longer investigation.  Seventeen new planning 
complaints had been documented during this time. In addition, a significant number 
of enquiries and calls for service from the general public and internal partners had 
been dealt with informally often within a few days of receipt.  Prompt, holistic 
responses and interventions had assisted to identify effective solutions to remedy 
harm before situations escalated, and with minimum impact upon resources. Several 
historic cases had also been resolved.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Previous Cases

Four retrospective planning applications had been submitted following invitation in 
order to resolve potential issues through the use of conditions.  A further two were 
currently under negotiation.

Of note, two historic situations pertaining to the alleged unauthorised use of land in 
open countryside had been re-visited.  Work was ongoing but in a case at Lindal in 
Furness the Enforcement and Principal Planning Officers had opened a dialogue 
with the owner and his representatives.  The talks seek to encourage a course of 
action involving restoration of some land and submission of an application for the 
remainder of the site therefore controlling some unauthorised activity and preventing 
further harm.

Difficulties had arisen in a previously reported case whereby notice had been served 
on a dilapidated property in the Ainslie street area in May 2018.  To date the notice 
had not been complied with.  A third party had now stepped in as a potential 
purchaser, and it was envisaged that this derelict commercial property would be the 
subject of an application to bring it back into some form of beneficial use.  That 
would involve the total refurbishment of the building.  The pragmatic approach 
represents a further example of balancing the needs of the Community with the need 
to protect limited Authority resources.  Direct action in default by the Council to repair 
the building could cost tens of thousands of pounds which could be tied up in the 
premises for years to come.  A conclusion of this matter was projected to be early in 
the New Year and would be further reported.  

Another unoccupied shop in a prominent position, this time in Dalton, had also been 
dealt with.  The frontage had decayed and deteriorated over a number of years and 
was a cause of some concern.  Working in conjunction with the owners and 
members of Dalton Town Council, the required works had been carried out again 
without the need for formal action and at no cost to the taxpayer.  

Interventions had also been made to deal with untidy land in both the town centre 
and also on Walney.  On such occasions persuasion and influencing had resulted in 
voluntary action being taken avoiding any formal action being considered.

More recently, the Officer had been invited by an Elected Member to engage with a 
Residents Group on Walney to deal with a community concern.  The issue related to 
a piece of vacant land, owned by a utility company, which had been put up for 
auction as a potential development site.  The ramifications of the sale had been 
discussed and a collaborative dialogue between all the parties had commenced.  
There had been some local media coverage of the issue.  The group had been 
appreciative and the Council had been viewed positively as a result.

Also on Walney, and again with Member involvement, the Officer had negotiated a 
compromise relating to an authorised shipping container whereby works had been 
completed in order to comply with a planning condition regarding the final 
appearance, and additional screening proposed to reduce any perceived visual 
impact upon local residents.

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



The office continued to receive complaints relating to the accumulation of numerous 
items within the front and rear gardens of a property on Walney. Officers ascertained 
that from the site history this was a problem that could not be solved by using 
Planning legislation alone and would continue to present a challenge. 

The curtilage of the property was in very poor condition and had been previously 
subject to section 215 Notices with the works carried out in default.  However it had 
been apparent that there were a greater number of other underlying factors which 
had required further investigation and understanding.

A Multi Agency Hub meeting had been called and driven by the Enforcement Officer 
to address various lifestyle and vulnerability issues of the single elderly occupier. 

As a result Officers from both the Public Protection and the Planning sections had 
attended, with the former serving notice following entry to the property and 
subsequent assessment of its internal condition.  Cumbria Fire and Rescue had also 
attended and fitted smoke alarms, Cumbria Social Services had put in place a care 
plan and Cumbria Police had deployed PCSOs to engage with and support the 
subject.  This case goes back over a decade and the bespoke approach to dealing 
with this elderly individual with complex needs had been necessary.

Following concerns raised by a local resident, an independent arborical report had 
been commissioned into potential damage to trees subject to a protection order on a 
current development site within the Borough. The findings of that report were under 
careful consideration and had been aligned to other applications under review on the 
site.

Conclusion

No significant legal actions had taken place over the past quarter, nor had any 
enforcement notices been served.  This has been as a result of careful and well 
researched negotiation, voluntary action, and the receipt of retrospective 
applications.  This had resulted in a considerable saving in Officer time, and a 
significant amount of legal fees had been avoided.  Overall it was considered that the 
Authority had received positive feedback from the public about the way in which 
planning enforcement had been conducted.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

271 – Enforcement Report – Breach of Planning Condition: Cedarwood 
Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness

The Development Services Manager submitted a report regarding the breach of a 
planning condition at Cedarwood, Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness.  He advised that 
this matter had been agreed in principle by the Planning Panel in December, but the 
new Enforcement Policy required Committee approval as this was a Level 1 offence.

Condition 2 of Planning Permission B18/2017/0584 required the following actions:

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Prior to any beneficial occupation of the extension hereby approved, the balustrade 
enclosing the balcony area shall be erected as show on drawing numbers WAW 
1477 4C and WAW 1477 6B without any openings or gates and thereafter 
permanently retained in the approved form and position.

The extension was now occupied.  Negotiations between the applicant and the 
Enforcement Officer had failed to resolve the situation, hence formal action was 
required.

Overview

The site is a semi-detached split level dwelling with the front door at first floor.  This 
is accessed by steps at the side of the former garage, which had now been altered to 
form a lounge extension.

Full details of the planning history had been included in the report.

It was noted that following refusal of a planning application on 8th January 2018, an 
appeal had been lodged with the Planning Inspectorate and determined by a 
decision dated 3rd August, 2018 (Ref: APP/W0910/D/18/3198958).

HM Planning Inspector stated that the appeal in respect of the balustrade should fail 
on the basis that the proposal would create an enlarged balcony area that would run 
along the shared boundary with the neighbouring property.  It was concluded that the 
proposed balcony area would significantly harm the living conditions of the occupiers 
with regard to loss of privacy and overlooking.  This would be therefore contrary to 
saved policy B21 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan Review 1996 - 2006 (2001).  
The policy sought to ensure that the creation of patio areas and balconies over 
house extensions do not result in an unacceptable loss of privacy for neighbouring 
occupiers. 

At present there was no balustrade in place.  That allowed pedestrians to wander 
unchecked across the whole flat roof area, and potentially look into the neighbour’s 
windows.  The extension was also now occupied; indeed the Enforcement Officer 
has been in the room and found it to be furnished and therefore habitable.  This was 
a direct breach of the planning condition.

In order to comply with the notice, the occupiers would need to either construct the 
balustrade in the approved position, or vacate the extension, (including emptying all 
furniture out of it) until the balustrade had been constructed.  This action needed to 
be carried out within 42 days of service in order to comply with the notice.

Members had been requested to note that contact had been made with the owners 
of Cedarwood on a number of occasions by the Enforcement Officer, and attempts 
had been made to negotiate a timescale for the construction of the balustrade.  
Verbal assurances had been given by the occupier that the works would be done, 
but to date the planning condition had not been complied with.  Consequently the 
Authority, in considering the impact upon the adjoining neighbours, had no other 
option but to serve notice upon the occupiers.  The notice had been issued in 
December and the Enforcement Officer advised the Committee that he had 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



subsequently been provided with written assurances from the owners that they 
would carry out the required works.

RESOLVED:- To agree the immediate service of a Breach of Condition Notice in 
order to ensure compliance with Condition 2 of B18/2017/0584.  The time for 
compliance shall be 42 days.  Should the notice not be complied with then Officers 
be authorised to commence suitable legal proceedings.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Assistant Director (Regeneration and Built Environment) submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

272 2018/0784 Erection of a single storey side extension forming store, wc, 
utility and extended kitchen at 202 Yarlside Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

273 2018/0781 Existing roof to be raised by 60cm to accommodate flat roof 
rear dormer for two bedrooms and a bathroom. Re-
configuration of ground floor accommodation at 23 Parklands 
Drive, Askam-in-Furness.

274 2018/0790 Single storey rear extension forming garden room at 24 
Elkstone Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

275 2018/0633 Change of use from a one bedroom flat (C3) to the Egerton 
Court Well-being Hub at 18A Egerton Court, Barrow-in-
Furness.

276 2018/0657 Listed Building Consent for display of an externally illuminated 
fascia sign on the frontage and an externally illuminated 
hanging sign on the side gable at 36 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

277 2018/0666 Listed Building Consent for the replacement of arched timber 
window with a slimline timber double glazed unit in like for like 
design at 1 Victoria Park Apartments, Oxford Street, Barrow-in-
Furness.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



278 2018/0658 Double storey side extension to provide ground floor store and 
kitchen with first floor bedroom en-suite at 14 Chester Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

279 2018/0607 Two storey side extension, loft conversion and single storey 
rear extension forming dining, kitchen, sitting area and 
additional bedroom at 15 Maryport Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

280 2018/0615 Change of use from a drinking establishment (use class A4) 
and four flats (use class C3) to nine flats (use class C3) 
including demolition of rear extension and erection of stepped 
three-storey rear extension and associated external alterations 
at 59-61 Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

281 2018/0778 Loft conversion with rear dormer to provide two bedrooms at 4 
Pypers Croft, Barrow-in-Furness.

282 2018/0728 Application for removal or variation of condition no. 3 of 
application 87/1055 (Change of use from shop to restaurant, 
takeaway and shop and external alterations) to allow opening 
from 6.00 to 4.00 Monday to Sunday at Sizzle Inn, 50 
Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

283 2018/0670 Change of use from a builders merchants (use class B8) to an 
MOT garage and bay (use class B2) at FBM Business 
Supplies, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness.

284 2018/0699 Double detached garage at 101 Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-
Furness.

285 2018/0708 Double storey part side and front extension providing utility 
room, wc and cloakroom at ground floor and extended 
bedroom three and en-suite at first floor. Single storey side and 
rear extension forming extended kitchen and craft room (Re-
submission of 2018/0222) at 23 Strathmore Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness.

286 2018/0710 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 4 
Highway surface water details, Condition No. 5 Contamination 
Report, Condition No. 6 Contamination Report, Condition No. 7 
Remediation Scheme Report, Condition No. 11 Methodology 
Report and Condition No. 12 Biodiversity enhancement of 
planning permission 2017/0108 (Erection of Detached Single 
Storey Dwelling) on Land at Flass Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

287 2018/0712 Construction of a stable for horses at Stable, Hawthwaite Lane, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

288 2018/0777 Rear kitchen, diner and living area extension at 9 Seatoller 
Place, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



289 2018/0755 Removal of existing conservatory and replacement with a new 
2 storey rear extension forming a dining room with bedroom 
over and insert a new first floor gable window within the eastern 
elevation of the existing house at 12 Aspen Drive, Barrow-in-
Furness.

290 2018/0745 Erection of a single storey building (5.5m x 27m) winter 
exercise area for boarding canines at Crossgates Boarding 
Kennels, Broughton Road, Dalton-in-Furness.

291 2018/0747 Two storey side extension forming living area with bedroom en-
suite above. New street access to allow for off street parking at 
16 Ramsgate Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness.

292 2018/0675 Replacement of shop front and windows to upper floor levels to 
front elevation for existing business use at 39 Cavendish 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

293 2018/0808 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) single storey rear extension 
incorporating kitchen and breakfast area at 12 Monks Croft 
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

294 2018/0789 Single storey rear extension forming kitchen, utility and wc at 3 
Belvedere Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

295 2018/0719 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 
part discharge (External render, roof tiles, eaves details to 
garden room and garage for plot 1, eaves detail for garden 
room plot 3, balustrade and eaves/floor detail to balcony) for 
planning permission B13/2018/0240 – Conversion of public 
house (Class A4) to form three dwelling houses (class C3) 
including demolition of existing structures and erection of new 
side extensions and detached garages at Former Vickerstown 
Public House, Central Drive, Barrow-in-Furness.

296 2018/0801 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) for a Loft conversion with front and 
rear velux windows to provide bedroom and stores at Gulls 
Mooring, Hogue Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

297 2018/0764 Rear living area extension at 32 Spruce Rise, Barrow-in-
Furness.

298 2018/0765 Notice of intention to carry out crown reduction to 8 trees 
situated within a Conservation Area at St Marys Church, Duke 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



299 2018/0768 Existing perimeter 2m high dilapidated chain link security fence 
to be replaced with new 2.4m high v weld mesh security fence 
(of same alignment) at St Pius X Roman Catholic School, 
Schneider Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

300 2018/0770 Single storey front extension to form an office arear and access 
to new staircase. Two storey side extension with living room 
and utility room on ground floor with bedroom and bathroom 
above at 16 Park Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

301 2018/0704 Conversion of shop with flat to 4 flats (net addition 3 flats) 
including removal of rear extension and consequent alterations 
(Resubmission) at 18-20 Douglas Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

302 2018/0763 External alterations to existing vacant unit at Former Frankie 
and Bennys, Unit 5, Hindpool Retail Park, Hindpool Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

303 2018/0769 Application for variation of condition no. 3 of planning 
permission 2009/0498 for conversion of garage into lounge and 
wc retaining garage door (retrospective) at 3 Chaucer Way, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

304 2018/0621 Change of use from a mixed use beauty salon with dwelling 
above (Sui-Generis) to a separate, enlarged beauty salon on 
ground and first floors (Sui-Generis), with a self contained 2 
bed dwelling (C3) on the first and second floors, with separate 
ground floor access at 1 Highfield Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

305 2018/0680 Advertisement Consent to display an externally illuminated 
fascia on the frontage and an externally illuminated hanging 
sign on the side gable at 36 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

306 2018/0683 Change of use from Retail (class A1) to an MP’s office 
providing advice offices to the public (class A2) at 80 
Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

307 2018/0692 Application for a Minor Material Amendment to vary condition 
no. 2 (approved drawings) of planning permission 2017/0108 
(Erection of a detached dwelling) to allow an increase in the 
ridge height by 600m (approx.) This is to accommodate rooms 
in the roof space. Roof lights are also added to the roof plane 
and slight changes to window and door positions to 
accommodate minor internal changes brought about by 
addition of new upper floor rooms. Removal of two windows 
and additions of flue for wood burning stove also added on 
Land at Flass Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



Town and Country Planning Acts

The Development Services Manager (Planning) reported on the following planning 
applications:-

308 – 3 Holker Street, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr N. Smith in respect of the change of use from a supermarket (Use Class 
A1) to a Bingo Hall (Use Class D2) at 3 Holker Street, Barrow-in-Furness as shown 
on plan number 2018/0729.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

An objector’s representative together with a representative of the applicant attended 
the meeting and made representations to the Committee.

The Committee’s attention had been drawn to amended plans which had been 
submitted which removed the previously proposed dwarf timber boundary fence to 
the south west corner of the site (to the rear of properties on Shakespeare Street), 
clarification regarding proposed lighting had been provided and agreement had been 
reached regarding the future acoustic requirements.  The proposed conditions had 
been updated to take account of those amendments and had been included in the 
extra information booklet, and it was 

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans 

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 23.11.2018 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by conditions attached to this consent: 

Site Plan Drawing No. 1720-201
Proposed Elevations Drawing No. 1720-107
Proposed car park layout Drawing No. 1720-104b (amended plan 
received on 4.1.2019)
Proposed Layout (floor plan) Drawing No. 1720-102
Planting plan Drawing No. LP2162-FIRA-MP-P-5000
Soft Landscape Layout Drawing No. 1720-105b (amended plan received 
on 4.1.2019)
Landscape Management Plan prepared by Fira landscape architecture 
and urban design dated 19.11.18 Job No. LP2162 
Landscape Maintenance document prepared by Fira landscape 
architecture and urban design dated 21.11.18 Document Ref. SPEC 
Q35 dated 21.11.2018

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Shrub schedule document prepared by Fira landscape architecture and 
urban design dated 23.11.18 Document Ref. Q31 PO1
Tree schedule-semi-mature document prepared by Fira landscape 
architecture and urban design dated 21.11.18 Document Ref. Q31 
Lighting Calculations Reference "Exterior (Rev 3b) prepared by Yesss 
Electrical for Goodwin Electrical dated 31.10.18
Lighting details received on 4.1.2019
Car parking Statement by Graves Cumberland Ltd dated 9.11.18 
Hours of Opening Statement dated 15.10.18 
Transport Statement by Graves Cumberland Ltd dated 9.11.18 
Letter from agent dated 18.12.18 
Daily operation of the premises Statement by Graves Cumberland Ltd 
dated 9.11.18.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

Pre-commencement Conditions 

3. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme containing full 
details of arrangements for internal air extraction, odour control, and 
discharge to atmosphere from any cooking operations, including any 
external ducting, flues and plant shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details shall 
include an acoustic report and details of any sound baffling equipment to 
meet the requirements of condition 6. The works detailed in the 
approved scheme shall be installed in their entirety before the use 
hereby permitted is commenced. The equipment shall thereafter be 
maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and 
operated at all times when cooking is being carried out.

Reason 

To protect the amenities of nearby residents. 

During Building Works 

4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved landscape plan 
referred to in Condition 2 above, shall be carried out in the first planting 
and seeding seasons following beneficial use of the development. Any 
trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of 
the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased, shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season 
with others of a similar size and species. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.

5. Any external lighting shall at all times be directed and shielded so as to 
minimise light spillage outside of the application site, and not shine 
directly onto any adjacent highway or neighbouring properties.

Reason

To minimise light pollution in accordance with the Save policy D63 of the 
Barrow Local Plan Review 1996-2006, and in the interests of highway 
safety and residential amenity. 

6. The rating level of sound emitted from any fixed plant and/or machinery 
associated with the development (including the discharge of cooking 
fume from a flue) shall not cause the existing background noise level 
(measured as the LA90 (10 minutes) to be exceeded at any 
neighbouring noise sensitive locations. Tonal noise will result in a 5dB 
addition to that noise (Definition in: Appendix E “Noise Procedure 
Specification, Publication 140”, The Engineering Equipment and 
Materials User Association). [Note: the noise is measured 3.5m from any 
reflective surface, other than the ground, at a height of between 1.2 and 
1.5m. 

Reason

In the interests of the residential amenity of the area. 

7. The premises shall not be open to the public, nor shall deliveries be 
made to or from the premises, before the hours of 0800am or after 2300 
Sunday to Thursday or before 0800am and after midnight Friday and 
Saturday. 

Reason

In order to protect the amenities of nearby residents.

8. The maximum power of each lighting unit shall be no greater than 70 
watts, or an equivalent power rating.

Reason

In order to prevent light spillage and in the interests of the amenity of 
adjacent residents.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



309 – Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea Road, Barrow-in-Furness

Consideration of this application had been deferred at the last meeting (Minute No. 
265 refers) to allow the Committee time to read the full report from the Independent 
Chartered Surveyor.

The application was from Mr J. Mark in respect of the extension of an agricultural 
building for implement and equipment storage at Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2018/0742.

Representations received and the results of consultations had been reported at the 
last meeting, where an objector had also made representations to the Committee.  
The Committee had also undertaken a site visit prior to that meeting.

The Principal Planning Officer advised that the application had been deferred at the 
last meeting to allow full consideration of the Agricultural Need Survey carried out for 
the Council.  That report had been included as an appendix to his report.  It had also 
been raised as to whether sufficient evidence of current livestock numbers had been 
provided by the applicant and whether increased use of the existing building for 
lambing may raise welfare issues as it was potentially not fit for purpose.  He advised 
that further information had been requested and provided by the applicant’s agent 
which had also been appended to his report.

The Principal Planning Officer advised the Committee that an additional condition 
would be imposed to limit the use for its proposed use (extension of agricultural 
building for implement and equipment storage) with limited use for livestock.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission. 

Reason 

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Compliance with Approved Plans 

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 25/10/18 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 

Drawing ref: 'Existing Building, Site Plan, Location Plan' drwg no. 01, 
dated 7-17. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



'Extension to building, Site Plan, Location Plan' drwg no.1, dated 4-18. 

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

During Building Works 

3. The cladding used in the roof and walls of the development hereby 
approved shall be in plastically coated profile metal sheet to colour 
BS4800 12B29 with the colour incorporated during the manufacturing 
process and which must be permanently retained. 

Reason 

A dark colour will make the development less prominent within the local 
landscape, which is one that the Planning Authority feels is worthy of 
protection from potentially intrusive development, in accordance with 
saved policy D1 of the Local Plan Review. 

4. Any doors shall either be given a dark green finish to BS4800 12 B29 or 
if made of timber given a dark stain finish.

Reason 

A dark colour will make the development less prominent within the local 
landscape, which is one that the Planning Authority feels is worthy of 
protection from potentially intrusive development, in accordance with 
saved policy D1 of the Local Plan Review.

Before Occupation 

5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until 
surface water drainage works have been implemented in accordance 
with details that have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. 

Reason

In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with 
the sustainable principles found in the NPPF 

Operational Conditions

6. The existing field boundary hedge along Oak Lea Road shall be 
permanently retained. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Reason

To minimise the impact of the development upon its surroundings, in 
accordance with saved policy D1 of the Local Plan Review.

7. The development hereby permitted shall not be used for the 
accommodation of livestock except in the following circumstances:

i)   That the need to accommodate the livestock arises from quarantine 
requirements, or an emergency due to another building or structure in 
which the livestock could otherwise be accommodated being 
unavailable because it has been damaged by fire, flood or storm; or

ii) In the case of animals normally kept out of doors, they require 
temporary accommodation in a building or structure because they are 
sick or giving birth or newly born, or to provide shelter against extreme 
weather conditions.

Reason

To protect residential amenity.

The meeting closed at 3.07 p.m.

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

05/02/2019

02/01/2019

21/01/2019

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2018/0651

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/01/2019

Location:
252 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9JJ

Proposal:
Creation of six bedroom extension to care home.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B13/2018/0598

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/01/2019

Location:
Phase 4 Housing Development Site Meadowlands
Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of 7 dwellings

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B21/2018/0813

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/01/2019

Location:
5 Pypers Croft Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9DD

Proposal:
Single storey living room rear extension and
double storey side extension to provide store,
utility room and WC with first floor bedroom with
en-suite

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B28/2018/0855

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
03/01/2019

Location:
Sowerby Lodge (Land north of) Bank Lane Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
condition No. 13 (surface water drainage strategy)
of planning permission 2015/0614 (Proposed
installation of a 4.17 MW solar farm and
associated development)

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2018/0792

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/01/2019

Location:
11 Carlton Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9AT

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension to create kitchen,
family room and dining area. Extension to form
continuous link with neighbour

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2018/0822

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
08/01/2019

Location:
6 Carmelite Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
0TP

Proposal:
Replacement conservatory (retrospective)

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2018/0836

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
08/01/2019

Location:
286 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9JN

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 3 (Smoking shelter details) & No. 4
(CCTV Cameras) of planning permission
2018/0350 (Change of use from a 7 bedroom semi
detached dwelling to provide 9 units with shared
kitchen and living facilities for independent adults
requiring minimal level of 24hr care)

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
BPA4/2018/08
59

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
16/01/2019

Location:
Green Area Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for prior approval for the erection of an
extension to an existing building to house farm
implements and materials

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2018/0795

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/01/2019

Location:
1 Elliscales Farm Askam Road Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8JT

Proposal:
Application for a Minor-material amendment
following grant of planning permission 2009/1473
(Conversion of a barn to a three bedroom dwelling
(revised scheme to that approved under reference
2007/1418)), provision of window to first floor
bedroom in southern elevation and provision of
flue pipe extending 1.0 m above roof pitch line in
southern elevation

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B18/2018/0746

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/01/2019

Location:
112 Church Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 1HA

Proposal:
Proposed change of use from restaurant and take
away on ground floor with HMO above to take-
away and 3 retail units on the ground floor and 8
self-contained flats on the first and second floor
with external alterations to the shopfronts and
associated alterations (amended description).

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B16/2018/0802

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/01/2019

Location:
9 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14
1HY

Proposal:
Material change of use of a section of first floor
area to A3 (retrospective)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2018/0818

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
18/01/2019

Location:
45 Longlands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0AG

Proposal:
Rear first storey flat roof extension over existing
ground floor extension to enlarge existing
bedrooms

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2018/0800

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
10/01/2019

Location:
1- 3 Portland Walk, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 1DB

Proposal:
Conversion of first floor to six studio, self contained
flats including the creation of new access door,
windows and change of glazing within the arch on
the front elevation

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B28/2018/9006

Decision:
COMMSENT

Decision Date:
14/01/2019

Location:
Goldmire Quarry Thwaite Flat Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP)
Application for permission ref 2003/9020 (County
Matter)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jason Hipkiss

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 05/02/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0016

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/01/2019

Location:
8 Victoria Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5JU

Proposal:
Removal of chimney breast and new drain for
toilet.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0002

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/01/2019

Location:
15 Barnard Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9TD

Proposal:
Removal of wall to one side of the stairs to
open into the lounge.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0029

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
15/01/2019

Location:
16 Gainsborough Place Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5DH

Proposal:
Removal of wall in kitchen to increase room
size, thermal upgrade of existing toilet and
cupboard, and installation of french doors.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
15/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0030

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
15/01/2019

Location:
12 Wallace Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1SL

Proposal:
Wet room extension.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
15/01/2019

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 05/02/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0032

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
15/01/2019

Location:
31 St Lukes Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9TS

Proposal:
Internal alterations to remove rear wall and
enlarge rear kitchen.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
15/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0042

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/01/2019

Location:
87 King Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8EN

Proposal:
Alterations and modifications to 1st floor, floor
joists and levels.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0008

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
07/01/2019

Location:
10 Lyndale Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9AR

Proposal:
Bricking up of an existing door and window on
flat roofed extension, provide new access and
installation of lintels.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
07/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0010/
MAST

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/01/2019

Location:
Proposed housing site at land toid
1000000224422676 Crompton Drive Dalton-
in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of 11 No. 3 and 4 bedroom houses.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/01/2019

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 05/02/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0038

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/01/2019

Location:
29 Fife Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9BU

Proposal:
Removal of wall between front and rear rooms
and widen existing opening to kitchen.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/01/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0043

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/01/2019

Location:
129 Rampside Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0PX

Proposal:
Creation of two ensuite rooms in existing
bedrooms.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/01/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2018/0339

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
13/11/2018

Location:
13 Hartland Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4EW

Proposal:
Single Storey rear extension, reconfiguration
of attached garage to include utility room, first
floor extension above garage.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/01/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2018/0580

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
03/12/2018

Location:
9 Pear Tree Bank Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0LF

Proposal:
Side, rear and front extensions to provide
lounge, kitchen, 2 bedrooms(one with en-
suite) shower room and front porch.
Extension of existing detached garage.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/01/2019

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 05/02/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2018/0787

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/11/2018

Location:
124 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1DJ

Proposal:
New first floor and existing staircase re-
positioned.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/01/2019

Reference
Number:
PC/2018/0797

Application
Type:
Partner
Authority Plan
Check

Received:
15/11/2018

Location:
6 Sunnybroke Close
Uckfield
TN22 1EY

Proposal:
Construction of a new additional garage.

Ward:
Error could not
find ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/01/2019

Reference
Number:
DM/2019/0001

Application
Type:
Demolition
Notice

Received:
21/01/2019

Location:
South Terminal Barrow Onshore Terminals
Rampside Road   Barrow-in-Furness

Proposal:
Demolition of part of the site which has been
decommissioned.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Notice Issued

Decision
Date:
21/01/2019

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

5th February 2019 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 74

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



B22/2019/0017 
Planning Committee  

5th February 2019  

  

  
Application Number : B22/2019/0017 Date Valid :15/01/2019 

Address : Emlyn Hughes House, Abbey 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria Case Officer : Adrian Adams 

Proposal : Advertisement consent to display 1 high level halo illuminated sign, 2 
internally illuminated fascia signs and 1 high level sign made up of non illuminated 
individual lettering. 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant :  Furness Building Society  Agent : Mrs Katie Towner 

Statutory Date : 12/03/2019 Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D38 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D40 
3. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D43 
4. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D63 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - 
Sustainable Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE1 - Heritage 

Assets and their setting 
5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE3 - Listed 

Buildings 
6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE4 - 

Conservation Areas 

 

Page 2 of 74

Page 30

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B22/2019/0017


Summary of Main Issues 

As this relates to a building which forms a key gateway site, the material considerations 
within this application are to ensure that the design of the advertisement is integrated into 
the fabric of the building, has a sympathetic impact upon the street scene, upon setting of 
the adjacent Grade II Listed Building (The Duke of Edinburgh) and upon the 
adjacent Barrow Central Conservation Area.  

Non Material Considerations 

None.  

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertise by site notice. 

No neighbours listed as consulted. 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
 
List of Organisation Responses 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 18/01/2019  

“No comment.” 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 74

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The site is located within a prominent location on the corner of Abbey Road and Holker 
Street, close to Barrow town centre and opposite the railway station. The host property 
forms that of a modern multi storey purpose built office unit with a mixture of red brick and 
glazed facades. The Barrow Central Conservation area is located to the south-east of the 
site on the opposite side of Abbey Road, the site also directly faces the front elevation of 
The Duke of Edinburgh Hotel,  which is a Grade II listed building. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Advertisement consent to display:  

• 1 high level halo illuminated sign - This sign would have an overall height of 1311 
mm and width of 4800 mm. It would be displayed upon the eastern elevation of the 
host building approximately 11.80 metres above the finished floor level of the 
building. The sign would be constructed of clear poly-carbonate backs with 
mounted LED's to allow illumination to a luminance level of 800 cd/m² 

• 2 internally illuminated fascia signs, one on each entrance on the eastern and 
southern elevations. Each sign would be 700 mm in height and 6000 mm in width 
and displayed at 2.6 metres above the finished floor level of the host building. Each 
sign would consist of an aluminium box sign 100 mm deep with a level 
of luminance of 800 cd/m² 

• 1 high level sign made up of non illuminated individual lettering and displayed upon 
the northern elevation of the host building. The top section of this sign would be 
displayed at displayed at approximately 12800 mm above the finished floor level of 
the host building, with further lettering below this. 

 3. Relevant History 

3.1 1976/1111 ABC Cinema, junction of Abbey Road/Holker Street, Barrow-in-Furness 
Extension of time to indoor games centre Approved 13/01/1977. 
 
3.2 1977/0077 1 Ritz Buildings, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from a 
shop to a day centre Appcond 09/03/1977. 
 
3.3 1977/0264 Astra Cinema, Abbey Road/Holker Street, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to 
display advertisements - six illuminated quad display signs, one illuminated metal sign and 
rectangular block fascia sign Appcond 25/04/1977. 
 
3.4 1977/0732 3 ABC Buildings Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Illuminated projecting sign 
Appcond 14/09/1977. 
 
3.5 1979/0552 Astra Cinema, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display 
advertisements - 48 sheet wall panel non-illuminated sign (20ft x 10ft) Refused 
03/07/1979. 
 
 

Page 4 of 74

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



3.6 1980/0397 4 Astra Cinema Buildings Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Change of use to 
a private members solarium in basement Appcond 01/07/1980. 
 
3.7 45/2004/1166 Former Apollo Astra Cinema Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA14 5QY Construction of an office building and associated public realm space Appcond 
16/03/2005. 
 
3.8 59/2005/0899 Barrow Gateway (Former Apollo Cinema) Abbey Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 5QY Submission of external lighting detail to comply with 
Condition No. 8 of approved scheme 2004/1166. APPLETT 09/09/2005. 
 
3.9 59/2005/0900 Barrow Gateway (Former Apollo Cinema) Abbey Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 5QY Submission of details to comply with Condition No. 7 of 
application 2004/1166 relating to disabled parking. APPLETT 14/07/2005. 
 
3.10 83/2006/0070 Emlyn Hughes House (former cinema) Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Advertisement Consent to display an internally illuminated, 8 metre high, free 
standing advertisement column for the extent of the proposed construction period. 
Appcond 22/03/2006. 
 
3.11 93/1999/0345 Coronation Gardens Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Works 
for general refurbishment, including reprofiling, landscaping, introduction of sculptures -
Town and Country Planning General Regulations, 1992 (Regulations 3 and 4) Appreg3 
28/07/1999. 
 
3.12 B20/2012/0305 Emlyn Hughes House Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Change of use of office (B1) located in the south east corner of the ground floor to travel 
agency (A1). Appcond 06-JUL-2012. 
 
3.13 B22/2012/0374 Emlyn Hughes House Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Advertisement Consent to display 4 non illuminated signs (three at high level) on front and 
side elevations. SPLIT 03-AUG-2012. 
 
3.14 B22/2013/0005 Barrhead Travel Emlyn Hughes House Abbey Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria Advertisement Consent for 2 x fascia signs above entrance, 3 x high 
level signs to Holker St elevation and 1x fascia sign to Abbey Road end elevation. 
Refused 25-FEB-2013. 
 
3.15 B28/2007/1257 Barrow Gateway (former cinema) Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 5PQ Submission of revised landscaping details as required by Condition 
No. 4 of planning permission 2004/1166 Approved 01/11/2007. 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 74

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 Under the current Delegation agreement, this application falls to be considered by 
Planning Committee since it relates to a Council owned property. 

4.2 The key material considerations within this application are the design of the 
advertisement and its overall impact upon the street scene and highway safety, the impact 
upon the adjacent Grade II listed building and the Barrow Central Conservation area 
located to the south-east. 

General Impact Upon the Character of the Local Area 

4.3 The application site is located within a mixed use area where there is an array of 
different types and styles of buildings and signage locally. The host building is located on 
the corner of Abbey Road and Holker Street and occupiers a very prominent with its 
modern design and large areas of glazing within the central principal elevation of the 
building. In terms of the design of the signage on this principal elevation, it is considered 
that this is very much in keeping with the overall appearance of both the host property and 
the surrounding area being that of a modern design but not in a format that would cause it 
to be overly prominent or out of keeping. The scale of the signage is in comparison to the 
size of the host building is very modest and the use of illumination has been keep to a 
minimum. 

4.4 In terms of the illumination proposed for the signs located on the eastern and southern 
elevations, it is considered that the application site is located within an area classed as a 
E3 Zone - Medium district brightness area e.g. Urban Location (Illuminated Signs 
Standing Advice). This advice recommends that any signage with an illuminated area of 
less than 10 metres square, should have a maximum level of luminance of 800 cd/m². All 
three illuminated signs cover less than 10 m²  and have a luminance level of 800 cd/ m². In 
summary of this point, it is considered that size, level of luminance and overall 
appearance of the signage would not adversely affect the character of the local area. 

4.5 The signage to the northern end elevation of the host property is proposed at a level of 
12.8 metres, this signage is non-illuminated and of a scale and appearance that 
compliments the main host building. It is considered that this enhances the appearance of 
the building and is an appropriate form of signage to the use of the host building as the 
head office of the Furness Building Society.  

4.6 Based upon the factors above, it is considered that the appearance of the proposed 
signage would be in keeping the aims of Emerging Policy DS5. 

Highways 

4.7 The response of the Highway Authority is awaited and will be reported to Members as 
extra information. 

 

 

Page 6 of 74

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



Impact Upon the Setting of a Listed Building  

4.8 The Duke of Edinburgh Hotel, listed as grade II, is located to the south-east of the 
application site, the two sites are separated by Abbey Road that runs between them. In 
terms of the design, scale and appearance of the proposed signage on the host building, 
the signage proposed is modest in terms of scale and appearance given the size of the 
host property. Given the limited level of illumination proposed it is considered that the 
proposed signage does not cause an unacceptable level of harm to the overall 
appearance or significance of the historic asset and therefore accords with the aims of 
Emerging Policy HE3. 

Impact upon the setting of the Conservation Area 

4.9 With the application site being adjacent to the Barrow Central Conservation 
Area (Designated 1981) located to the south-east, an assessment of the impact of the 
proposed signage open setting and the character of this Conservation Area is required. It 
is considered that the proposed signage does not represent an alien or uncommon form of 
signage within the general mixed use area. The signage is of only a modest size in 
comparison to the host building and would not be overly prominent within the street scene. 
On that basis, it is consider that proposal meets with the requirements of Policy HE4 - 
Conservation Areas - an emerging Policy of the Local Plan. 

4.10 In terms of conditions, it is considered appropriate to attach a condition to ensure that 
the development remains in accordance with the plans submitted and approved within this 
application so as to safeguard both significance of the heritage asset and the setting of the 
Conservation Area. 

 5. Conclusions 

5.1 This is a high quality scheme that has been sympathetically designed to blend into the 
fabric of the building. It takes account of the status of this key site on the edge of the 
conservation area and close to a prominent listed building. It is considered that the 
proposed signage is acceptable in planning terms, subject to the following Conditions: 

6. Recommendation 
 
Subject to no adverse material comments being received within the unexpired 
representation period that would warrant re-consideration of the application, ( in which 
case I recommend delegation of the decision to the Panel) I recommend that 
Advertisement Consent is GRANTED subject to the following conditions : - 

1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the hereby approved plans and drawings as defined by this consent, and notwithstanding 
the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations, 2007 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no variation without the prior written consent of the Planning 
Authority. 

 

Page 7 of 74

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Approved Plans: 
Site Location Plan, 
Plan: Item 1 - Halo Illuminated Built Up Letter dated 02/01/2019 
Plan: Item 2 - Illuminated Fascia Signs dated 20/01/2019 
Plan: Item 3 - Non Illuminated Letters dated 02/01/2019 
Plan: Holker Street Elevation Rev 3 Dated 02/01/2019 
Plan: Abbey Road Elevation Rev 3 Dated 02/01/2019 
Plan: Coronation Gardens/Abbey Road Elevation Rev 3 Dated 02/01/2019 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
During Building Works 
 
2. Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site 
shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations, 2007. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
3. No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or 
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations, 2007. 
 
4. No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to; (a) endanger persons using any 
highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or military); (b) obscure, or 
hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to navigation by 
water or air; or (c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or 
surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.  
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations, 2007. 
 
5. Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying 
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public. 
 
 

Page 8 of 74

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations, 2007. 
 
6. Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall 
be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations, 2007. 
 

 

 
 

  

  

Page 9 of 74

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



Page 10 of 74

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



Page 11 of 74

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



Page 12 of 74

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



Page 13 of 74

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



Page 14 of 74

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



Page 15 of 74

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



Page 16 of 74

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



B12/2018/0364 
Planning Committee  

5
th
 February 2019  

  

  

 

Application Number : B12/2018/0364 Date Valid :08/06/2018 

Address : Crooklands Garden Centre, 
Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-Furness, LA15 
8JH 

Case Officer : Outsourced to Cushman & 
Wakefield 

Proposal : Retrospective permission for a two storey building (660 sqm) located on the west 
side of the garden centre for the sale and storage of garden related products; various 
structures totalling 882 sqm providing sales floorspace and ancillary areas; change of use of 
part of the Garden centre to non-food retail, and the extension and amendment to the car 
park layout. 
 

Ward : Dalton North Dalton and Newton Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Charnley’s Home and Garden Agent : Mary Davidson, MDAssociates 

Statutory Date : 03/08/2018, extension of 
time agreed until 16th March 2019 

Recommendation : Grant subject to 
conditions 

  

National Guidance – NPPF (2018) 

The NPPF confirms that Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) should apply a sequential test to 
applications for main town centre uses which are out of centre, and where proposals are out of 
centre, preference should be given to accessible sites which are well connected to the town 
centre.  Applicants and LPAs should be flexible on format and scale when discounting 
alternative sites (Paragraph 87).  Paragraph 89 confirms that LPAs should require an impact 
assessment to be undertaken if the development is over a proportionate and locally set 
threshold.  An assessment should include the impact of the proposal on existing, committed 
and planned investment in a centre as well as the impact that the scheme will have on a town 
centre’s vitality and viability, and wider retail catchment area.    

Local Plan Policies 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies (2001) 

1. Policy C1 
2. Policy C2 
3. Policy C3 
4. Policy D21 
5. Policy E9 
6. Policy E16 

Page 17 of 74

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



7. Policy F4 
8. Policy F6 
9. Policy F11 
10. Policy F15 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies (December 2017) 
 
The relevant emerging policies are as follows: 

1. DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
3. DS5 – Design 
4. DS6 – Landscaping 
5. C3a – Water Management 
6. C4 – Contaminated and Unstable Land 
7. C5 – Promoting Renewable Energy 
8. C7 – Light Pollution 
9. I1 – Developer Contributions 
10. I4 – Sustainable Travel Choices 
11. I5 – Travel Plans 
12. I6 – Parking 
13. R7 – Sequential test for new Retail Developments in Dalton, including proposals which 

remove restrictive goods conditions on existing units 
14. R9 – Impact Assessments – Retail in Dalton 
15. GI3 – Green Corridors 
16. HC5 – Crime Prevention 

Summary of Main Issues 

The proposal is for retrospective approval for the change of use of 995 sqm of floorspace from 
garden sales to non-food retail and for the erection of a two-storey building (660 sqm), covered 
court-yard and mezzanine level (882 sqm) amounting to 1,542 sqm floorspace.  Approval is 
also sought for the creation of an extended car parking area to the east.   
 
The building works and change of use are understood to have been completed in May 2016 
and the applicant has been trading within the extended building, since this date.  
 
This application has been requested to be submitted to resolve an outstanding enforcement 
case.  Previous applications have been submitted and subsequently withdrawn given the lack 
of car parking on the site.  This latest application therefore proposes an amended application 
red line and includes extending the car parking area to the east of the Garden Centre building 
(within the current Breaker’s Yard site) in order to provide additional capacity.     
 
The site is in an out of town location, hence it is important to establish whether a “demonstrable 
need” has been shown given the unauthorised sales and development that have occurred in 
the existing garden centre. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 74

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



Key issues are impact on the vitality and viability of Dalton and Barrow Town Centres, the 
suitability of the proposed car parking, any subsequent highways impact (including servicing), 
drainage, and the visual impact of the proposal; balancing these with the economic benefits of 
the proposal.  

Response to Publicity and Consultations 
 
The development was advertised on site and in the local press. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Crooklands Industrial Estate Units 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 
Ulverston Road Dalton Motor Breakers 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Cumbria County Council (Fire and Rescue) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Lindal and Martin Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Network Rail 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 12/06/2018  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals” 

 

 

 

 

Page 19 of 74

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 22/06/2018 

“Thank you for the above consultation. I have reviewed the information and I have also taken 
the opportunity to review the existing contaminated land reports prepared by bEk Enviro. I do 
not wish to comment on this retrospective application at this time except to say that by 
constructing a building where the general public are likely to enter eventually, the developer 
runs the risk of affecting public health if no professional advice from the council is sought prior 
to development”. 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 14/08/2018 

“My comments relate to all developments that are retrospective. It is hard to place conditions 
on a retrospective application for work to take place on a development once it has already 
been completed. I.e. Under the NPPF, Policy 120 states that the potential sensitivity of the area 
or proposed development to adverse effects from pollution should be taken into account. 
Without carrying out a proper risk assessment pre development, the developer runs the risk of 
creating a pollutant linkage, not just with the general public, but for the construction workers. 

It is very difficult to place a condition stating that we require the floor slab to be taken up and 
ground gas monitoring to take place as well as an intrusive investigation, this is not practical. 
Therefore a condition is not recommended, it is simply an advisory to all developers to seek 
planning approval before a development takes place”. 

Cumbria County Council Fire and Rescue 19/06/2018 

"The following comments are a requirement to ensure compliance with; 

Building regulation 2010 

Vehicle access road should comply with ADB section 16.8, Table 20 and Diagram 50 and ADB 
section 16.2.  
 
The following comments are advisory: 
 
ADVISORY 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service is committed to reducing the impact of fire on people, 
property and the environment. For this reason, it is recommended that the applicant should 
give consideration to the inclusion of a sprinkler system within the design of the premises. 
There is clear evidence that sprinklers and other forms of automatic fire suppression systems 
can be effective in the rapid suppression of fires and therefore play an important role in 
achieving a range of benefits for both individuals and the community in general. 
 
This is because sprinklers can significantly help to: 
 
• Improve the time available to escape from a fire 
• Reduce death and injury from fire 
• Reduce the risks to fire fighters who we ask to fight the fires 
• Protect property 
• Reduce the effects of arson 
• Reduce the environmental impact of fire 

Page 20 of 74

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



 
These benefits may far outweigh the installation costs of new sprinkler systems. 
 
For more information on sprinklers, visit the British Automatic Fire Sprinkler Association at 
www.bafsa.org.uk." 
 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 06/07/2018  
 
"Thank you for the consultation on the above application Cumbria County Council as the 
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the submitted 
material and has the following comments and recommendations: 
 
Highways 
 
It is considered that due to the location and type of retail mix on offer that the vast majority of 
customers will travel by private car. The adjacent C6009 Ulverston Road is relatively wide and 
has higher traffic speeds than the centre of Dalton owing to the fact that this is a semi-rural site 
on what used to be the A590 trunk road and is on a gradient. The visibility splay must be 
maintained at the access so we would not want to encourage on-street parking in the vicinity of 
the site and its access. Therefore, adequate customer parking is essential on site. The 
proposed layout increases the existing number to a notional 109 spaces. 
 
It is also noted that a loading area is designated outside the new building which will help 
reduce conflict with customers’ vehicles. However, it is also noted that the delivery vehicles will 
still have to carry out reversing manoeuvres within the car park area which carries some risk, 
but this is to be mitigated by the measures contained within the Deliveries Management Plan. It 
is essential that this plan is complied with, reviewed and any recommended changes 
implemented in a timely manner. 
 
The Highway Authority has reviewed the submitted travel plan (dated Feb 2018) and find the 
proposed targets and measures acceptable.  However, it will be critical to monitor and review 
the Travel Plan at regular intervals and introduce any recommendations in order to better help 
achieve the targets. 
 
It is considered that if the demand and operation of the car park is managed as proposed in the 
Travel Plan and the complementary Deliveries Management Plan, then the car parking and 
delivery layout is acceptable to the Highway Authority. 
 
Parking provision associated with a permanent development should be a permanent facility 
where the use is ensured for the lifetime of the operation, subject to change of use applications 
and the like. To ensure that the proposed level of parking is retained a condition should be 
attached to any planning permission stating that loss of parking provision will result in a review 
of the stores trading floor space and/or types of use. 
 
Recommendations 
The developer should enter into a suitable worded S106 agreement with the Highways 
Authority to fund the Travel Plan Monitoring function for the sum of £6,600. 
 
Cumbria Highways therefore has no objections to the proposals.  
 

Page 21 of 74

Page 49

Agenda Item 8

http://www.bafsa.org.uk/


We would however recommend that the following conditions are included in any consent you 
might grant in due course: 
 
An annual report reviewing the effectiveness of the Travel Plan and including any 
necessary amendments or measures shall be prepared by the developer/occupier and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. 
Reason: To aid in the delivery of sustainable transport objectives. To support Local Transport 
Plan Policies: WS3, LD4 
 
The use and operation of the building is dependent on providing the approved additional 
parking spaces. Any such parking provision shall be retained and shall not be removed 
or altered without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. Any loss or 
reduction of the additional parking provision will necessitate the cessation of trading 
from the building. 
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the development is brought 
into use. To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, 
 
The developer shall prepare and submit to the Local Planning Authority for their 
approval a Deliveries Management Plan. This plan should outline the process and 
procedures to ensure deliveries are properly planned and managed including safety 
measures to protect staff and customers and measures to reduce the number of HGVs 
that need to make deliveries to the site or to deliver outside of trading hours. 
Reason: To reduce conflict and therefore improve safety for staff and customers in the car 
park." 
 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 06/07/2018 
 
“The LLFA team has assessed the additional drainage and flood risk documents and can 
confirm that the queries and concerns have been addressed to our satisfaction. The 
information and designs demonstrate that the surface water run-off is appropriately managed 
utilising an infiltration strategy with soakaways and that the exceedance routes are managed 
properly. 
 
The LLFA team therefore has no objections to the drainage proposals." 
 
Lindal and Marton Parish Council 10/07/2018 
 
"It was pointed out that various amendments to buildings had taken place over the last few 
years at the garden centre, seemingly without planning permission, and this had culminated in 
a previous retrospective application being submitted for the Parish Council’s consideration in 
July, 2017. The Council’s decision at that time was “no comment”, on the grounds that, whilst 
the site was within the Parish, it was in reality part of Dalton and that Dalton Town Council 
would be responding themselves. 
 
It was PROPOSED by Councilor Howarth and SECONDED by Councilor Mrs Kelly that, given 
that Dalton Town Council would again be responding, the Parish Council again offer “no 
comment” on this application. Carried unanimously." 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 74

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



Barrow Borough Council  Policy & Regeneration  07/09/2018 

 
Saved Local Plan Policies 
Paragraph 213 of the NPPF states that:  
 
“existing policies should not be considered out-of-date simply because they were adopted 
or made prior to the publication of this Framework. Due weight should be given to them, 
according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the policies in the 
plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given.)” 
 
The most relevant saved policies and the weight they can be given are listed below. 
 

 Saved Policy C1 accords with the NPPF, is in date and can therefore be given full 
weight.  

 Saved Policy C2 promotes a town centre first approach. The policy does not however 
fully accord with the NPPF as each document contains a different definition of edge of 
centre. The Policy can therefore be given limited, albeit some, weight.  

 Saved Policy C3 is also partly out of date as it contains a local or special need 
argument and is therefore more restrictive than the NPPF. It also differs from the NPPF 
as it states that any development which does not have a special or local need must be 
accompanied by a retail impact assessment regardless of its size. The Policy can 
therefore be given limited, albeit some, weight.  

 
NPPF/NPPG 
These two documents are material considerations. Given that two of the most important 
Policies for determining the application are partly out of date, the tilted balance is engaged 
under paragraph 11 of the NPPF. This states that unless any adverse impacts significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework 
taken as a whole, the application should be approved. 
 
The NPPF and NPPG both promote a town centre first approach and refer to the sequential 
test and retail impact assessments.  
 
Sequential Test 

 Paragraph 86 of the NPPF states that: “Main town centre uses should be located in town 
centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable sites are not available (or 
expected to become available within a reasonable period) should out of centre sites be 
considered.” (note: town centres is plural suggesting that multiple centres should be 
considered) 

 Paragraph 87 continues: “When considering edge of centre and out of centre proposals, 
preference should be given to accessible sites which are well connected to the town 
centre…” 

 Paragraph 90 states that “Where an application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is 
likely to have significant adverse impact on one or more of the considerations in 
paragraph 89, it should be refused.”  

 With regards to the sequential test, the NPPG paragraph 001 (Ref: 2b-001-20140306) 
states that “the sequential test should be considered first as this may identify that there 
are preferable sites in town centres for accommodating main town centre uses.” 

 

Page 23 of 74

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



 Paragraph 006 (Ref: 2b-006-20140306) acknowledges that “It may not be possible to 

accommodate all forecast needs in a town centre: there may be physical or other 
constraints which make it inappropriate to do so.”  

 Paragraph 010 (Ref: 2b-010-20140306) provides guidance on how to carry out the 
sequential test. The first bullet point requires LPAs to ask “has the suitability of more 
central sites to accommodate the proposal been considered”. The third bullet point 
states that “if there are no suitable sequentially preferable locations, the sequential test 
is passed.” 

 Paragraph 11 states that “the sequential test should recognise that certain main town 
centre uses have particular market and locational requirements which mean that they 
may only be accommodated in specific locations. Robust justification must be provided 
where this is the case, and land ownership does not provide such a justification.” 

 
Impact Assessments 
Paragraph 89 of the NPPF identifies where a retail impact assessment would be required. The 
default threshold is 2,500m2 of gross floorspace unless a local threshold has been set.  
 
The NPPF sets out what should be contained within an assessment including “the impact of the 
proposal on existing, committed and planned public and private investment in a centre or 
centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and the impact of the proposal on town centre 
vitality and viability, including local consumer choice and trade in the town centre and the wider 
retail catchment.” 
 
Emerging Policy 
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that:  
“Local planning authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging Local Plans 
according to: 
 
a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the 
greater the weight that may be given;  
b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant 
the unresolved objection, the greater the weight that may be given); 
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this Framework 
(the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the 
weight that may be given.”  
 
The new Local Plan sets out a hierarchy of town centres in the Borough as required by the 
NPPF. In paragraph 8.1.1 of the Submission Draft it states that “Barrow town centre is the 
focus for comparison retail shopping in the Borough”. Paragraph 8.6.2 acknowledges that 
Dalton is “a secondary retail destination to Barrow town centre, meeting the day to day retail 
needs of the town and surrounding rural area.” Paragraph 8.6.5 continues by noting that “the 
current Local Plan recognises Dalton’s town centre as having subordinate status to Barrow 
town centre.” This is also recognised within the paragraph 5.6 of the applicant’s planning 
statement which states that “Dalton is…very much a local service centre”. 
 
The Visions for Barrow and Dalton town centre on page 183 of the Local Plan state that 
“Barrow will maintain its role as the principal shopping destination of the Furness peninsula” 
whilst “Dalton will develop its role as a secondary centre to Barrow…” 
 
 

Page 24 of 74

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



 Policy R7 relates to the sequential test and states that “An out of centre location will 
only be permitted where clear and detailed justification that a sequentially preferable 
location is unfeasible is provided…”  

 Policy R9 requires a retail impact assessment for development which creates new retail 
floorspace over 500m2 (including conversions) outside Dalton town centre. It states that 
applications will be refused if the development/alteration prejudices the vitality and/or 
viability of the town centre as a whole. 

 In order to determine the weight that the Emerging Policies can be given, they have 
been considered against the criteria in para 48 of the NPPF:  
 

o Criteria a: the Plan is now at an advanced stage with the Examination in Public 
taking place in June this year. The Council is currently consulting on a number of 
Main Modifications. 

o Criteria b: An objection was received (from the applicant) to Policy R7 at Pre-
Submission stage. The Plan was subsequently amended in light of this therefore 
there are no unresolved objections remaining. The Council is proposing a Main 
Modification to the wording of the policy to make it clear that sequentially 
preferable sites within Barrow should also be considered through the sequential 
test.  

o An objection was received at Pre-Submission stage to Policy R9 (from the 
applicant) regarding the threshold for a retail impact assessment which they 
considered to be too small. An alternative threshold of 1000m² was suggested by 
the applicant, however no evidence was provided to support this position. The 
threshold referred to in the Policy is informed by an independently produced 
Retail Study therefore the objection is not considered to be significant however it 
remains outstanding. 

o Criteria c: The policies are considered to be fully consistent with the NPPF. 
 

Given the above, Policy R7 can therefore be given moderate weight and Policy R9 limited 
weight. 
 
Summary  
The Policy and Regeneration Team is unable to support the application in its current form as 
the adverse impacts of the proposal outweigh the benefits when assessed under the tilted 
balance. We request further work is undertaken in terms of the sequential test and impact 
assessment. 
 
Sequential Test  
The applicant has carried out a sequential test where the availability of alternative, more central 
sites within Dalton has been considered. As there are no suitable units or sites available within 
the town centre they have opted for the application site, which is an out of town site 0.9km 
away from eastern edge of Dalton town centre. Access on foot is poor with no continuous 
pavement from the town centre to the site. The majority of customers are likely to arrive on site 
by car.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 74

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



The applicant has not considered sites within Barrow town centre, or Barrow edge of centre, 
when carrying out the sequential test, although Appendix 2 to their Planning Statement shows 
that the majority of their customers live there. The original commercial use was permitted on 
the outskirts of Dalton as it was linked to an existing plant nursery, however it is unknown 
whether the nursery use is still operational and is therefore still a relevant locational factor 
when carrying out the sequential test. It is also unknown whether there are other particular 
market and locational requirements which mean that they may only be accommodated on the 
application site. 
 
The Policy and Regeneration Team believe that the sequential test as submitted is insufficient 
and the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 86 and 90 of the NPPF, Saved Policy C2 and 
emerging Policy R7. Consideration should be given to sequentially preferable sites within 
Barrow given the proximity of the two centres and the fact that Dalton is subordinate to Barrow 
in the retail hierarchy. When carrying out the sequential test, guidance within the NPPG should 
be followed.  
 
Retail Impact Assessment 
A Retail Impact Assessment (RIA) has not been carried out therefore the impact upon existing 
centres is unknown. An RIA is however required by Saved Policy C3 and emerging Policy R9 
as the proposed additional floorspace is well in excess of 500sqm. In terms of impacts: 
 

 A condition was attached to planning consent 2013/0125 limiting the sale of goods to 

plants, gardening equipment, garden furniture and accessories. The reason for this 

condition was “A general retail outlet would not normally be permitted in this location due 

to the adverse impact upon the vitality and viability of the established shopping centres.” 

 Para 6.11 of the Planning statement misquotes the NLP retail study by suggesting that 

the proposal will have any positive impact on the vacancy rate within the town centre of 

Dalton. The advice in the study says that “the most appropriate way to plan for additional 

capacity is to allow for the organic growth of existing businesses and premises within the 

town centre.” (emphasis added) Whilst the proposal will bring wider economic benefits, it 

will have limited positive impact upon Dalton town centre in terms of additional footfall as 

the majority of visitors will arrive by car. 

 A condition is suggested in para 7.16 of the applicant’s Planning Statement, to limit any 

future impact upon town centre vitality and viability. We are concerned that this condition 

does not meet the tests listed in Paragraph 206 of the NPPF particularly as the 

suggested list of items permitted for sale under the condition would be extensive. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26 of 74

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Barrow Borough Council Policy and Regeneration 24/01/2019 (updated response) 

Further to our comments of 7th September 2018 the applicant has submitted a revised 

sequential test which assesses a number of sites in Barrow as requested. The Sequential Test 

demonstrates that there are no sequentially preferable sites within the Borough; therefore the 

development complies with saved and emerging Local Plan policy and the NPPF with regards 

to this issue. The applicant has also now submitted a Retail Impact Assessment as required by 

saved and emerging policy. The Assessment complies with national guidance and concludes 

that the impact on centres within the Borough will be negligible. In light of this additional 

information, the Policy and Regeneration Team are now able to support the application. 

Network Rail 30/07/2018 
 

“Network Rail has the following comments to make on the above proposal. 
 
Network Rail would question whether the soakaways would have a negative effect on the 
adjacent earthwork cutting embankment, especially the one closest to Network Rail 
Infrastructure. Also the introduction of the additional car park would necessitate a vehicle 
incursion assessment requirement.  
 
For both a Network Rail Asset Protection Project Engineer and the immediate Earthwork Asset 
Owner to further comment we would need as a starting point clarification on the following (to be 
progressed through a BAPA agreement): 
 

 Confirmation and evidence of how long the current soakaways, especially the one 
closest to Network Rail Infrastructure, has been in place (believed the one closest to 
Network Rail is located below the current Poly Tunnels buildings). 

 Confirmation the new buildings/Poly Tunnels are additional to what the Soakaway was 
originally constructed for. 

 Confirmation of the distance this soakaway is from the closest Network Rail boundary 
and what its dimensions/construction is. 

 Details of any Flood risk assessment & Drainage strategy including Ground Investigation 
results for the soakaway(s) suitability, to include for the new building/Poly Tunnel 
buildings/proposed car park extension. 

 
The BAPA agreement would also need to facilitate a vehicle incursion assessment for the 
additional car park indicated (form attached) “ 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 74

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The Application Site comprises an existing Garden Centre (previously known as Crooklands 
Garden Centre) which is accessed off Ulverston Road (approximately 200 metres from the 
Melton Brow traffic island junction which connects to the A590).  Ulverston Road at the location 
of the application site has a speed limit of 60 mph.  

1.2 The application site covers an area of 0.6968 ha and comprises two linked and extended 
buildings (set back approximately 25 metres from Ulverston Road) as well as hardstanding to 
the front providing car parking for 46 cars, including 2 disabled bays, and temporary 
hardstanding/chippings to the east which currently serves as an overflow car parking area 
(unmarked spaces). 

1.3 A retail area for the display and sale of plants and garden items is located to the rear of the 
building, which is accessed through the main building.  

1.4 The site is bounded by Ulverston Road to the north, Dalton Motor Breakers to the north 
east, a railway line to the south and a Public Right of Way (no:602020) to the south west, 
beyond which lies a small industrial estate (Crooklands Business Park) comprising 8 industrial 
units. 

1.5 The application site is allocated as a Local Employment Site (Location E11, Policy A1) 
although this allocation is proposed to be retracted within the emerging Local Plan.   

1.6 The application site is considered to be ‘out of centre’ for the purposes of the sequential test 
and is located approximately 1km north east of Dalton-in-Furness.   

1.7 The application site has approval to trade as a garden centre (sales limited to the sale of 
plants, gardening equipment, garden furniture and accessories) as of May 2013 (Planning 
reference: B18/2013/0125).   

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The proposal is for the retrospective approval for the erection of a two-storey linked building 
(660 sqm), covered courtyard (662 sqm) and mezzanine floor (220 sqm), for the change of use 
of 995 sqm from a garden centre to be used for gift, home and furniture sales, and the creation 
of an extended car parking area to provide for a total of 109 car parking spaces.   
 
2.2 The application was submitted on 14th May 2017 to respond to an enforcement case and 
formally regularise the position.  This application is a resubmission of application (B10/2017/ 
0312) to accommodate the additional car parking area within the planning application red line.    
 
2.3 The development comprises the following: 
 

 Two-storey building of 660 sqm floorspace to accommodate garden sales on the ground 
floor, with the mezzanine level to be used for storage only; 

 Enclosed courtyard area of 662 sqm floorspace; 

 Mezzanine level of 220 sqm for gift and home sales space; 

Page 28 of 74

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



 Amendment of existing and creation of new car parking area to provide an additional 63 
car parking spaces; 

 Change of use of 995 sqm of floorspace from garden centre sales to non-food retail use 
(to be used for the display and sale of gift and homeware, including furniture). 

 
2.4 In summary, the extended building and associated two-storey (former detached) building is 
2,734 sqm, of which 2,011 sqm relates to the net sales area, 305 sqm for the café, kitchen and 
ancillary space, and 418 sqm storage space.  Outdoor garden sales represent a total of 
960sqm. 
 
2.5 The two-storey (former detached) building extends to 7.5 m in height and the main building 
extends to 6.45 m in height. 
 
2.6 The Garden Centre proposes to continue trading between 09:00 hours to 17:30 hours 
Monday to Saturday and 10:30 until 16:30 on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
2.7 The Garden Centre has 33 members of staff.   

3. Relevant History 

3.1 1997/1018 - Establishment of a horticultural nursery enterprise involving the erection of poly 
tunnels for the propagation of plants for the wholesale market. Approved with conditions 17th 
December 1997. 
 
3.2 2003/1190 - Extension to nursery to include garden centre for sales to the public, including 
erection of a plant sales building, a storage building, outdoor display/sales area and car park 
with new access onto a classified road. Approved with conditions 4th February 2004. 
 
3.3 2007/0282 – Erection of a Glass House for sales area (320 sqm) and extended car park 
creating an additional 11 parking spaces. Approved with conditions 11th April 2007. 
 
3.4 2008/1701- Erection of a new extension to provide additional sales area and new cafe 
facilities (retrospective). Approved with conditions 17th February 2009, including condition 
limiting sales to plants, gardening equipment and accessories  
 
3.5 2011/0567 - Erection of a new extension for the provision of display and storage including 
the retrospective provision of new car parking to the front of the premises. Approved with 
conditions 2nd March 2012, including condition limiting sales to plants, gardening equipment, 
garden furniture and accessories  
 
3.6 2013/0125 - Application to retain rear extension built in a revised form to that approved 
under ref 2011/0567 and to be used for occasional use as a function room (south room) in 
addition to the approved sales, display and storage uses (retrospective). Approved with 
conditions 14th May 2013 
 
3.7 2016/0426 - Retrospective application for the construction of detached extension to provide 
retail space to ground floor with storage to first floor (amended plans showing revised position). 
Withdrawn 23rd November 2016 
 
 

Page 29 of 74

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



3.8 2017/0312 – Retrospective permission for a two storey building located on the west side of 
the garden centre for the sale and storage of garden related products,various structures 
totalling 1381 square metres providing sales floorspace and ancillary areas,change of use to 
part of the Garden centre to non-food retail, and for the extension and amendment to the car 
park layout. withdrawn 23rd March 2018 

3.9 The original planning permission, as a horticultural nursery serving the trade market, dates 
back to 1997 with the principle of retail use as a garden centre being granted in early 2004.  
The 2004 permission granted the erection of a plant sales building, storage building, and 
outdoor display and sales area and car parking.  Sales space was limited to 180 sqm with the 
remainder for horticultural enterprise. 
 
3.10 In 2007, approval was granted for a glass house with a sales area of 320 sqm and 
additional car parking. 
 
3.11 Retrospective approval was granted in 2009 to replace the glass house with a new building 
(of 320 sqm) and provide for indoor sales and café.  An extended car parking area was also 
created to provide a total of 39 spaces.  Sales were limited (by condition) to plants, gardening 
equipment and accessories. 
 
3.12 In 2012, planning permission was granted for an extension of 336 sqm as well as 
retrospective approval for additional car parking to the front of the premises.  Sales remained 
limited (by condition) to the sale of plants, gardening equipment, garden furniture and 
accessories.  Following this approval, the Garden Centre had a permitted floor area of 1,326 
sqm.   
 
3.13 The 2013 application sought to regularise the rear extension, which had been built in a 
revised form to that permitted under application 2011/0567.  Retrospective approval was 
granted for an additional 168 sqm of floorspace to be used for entertainment uses as well as to 
use the rear extension for occasional events.  The permitted floor area of the Garden Centre in 
May 2013 was 1,494 sqm.  Again, sales were limited to plants, garden furniture, equipment and 
accessories. 
 
3.14 There has therefore been a number of extensions to the centre, involving a diversification 
of the use and range of goods sold, including limited use for functions such as parties.   
 

3.15 The applicant sought to regularise the construction of the detached extension and the 
provision of gift and home sales (including furniture) in 2016.  The applicant withdrew the 
application in November 2016 following the recommended refusal of the application and 
enforcement action for the removal of the building and sales of non-permitted goods.   
 

3.16 A further application was submitted in May 2017, for the detached building and sales of 
non-permitted goods.  This was withdrawn due to the need to create an extended car parking 
area outside the planning red line. The current application addresses this issue.  
 
3.17 Cumbria Building Control has also issued a Contravention of The Building Act 1984/ 
Building Regulations 2010 (CO/2017/0001) for the internal mezzanine floor and enclosure of 
the yard area which has not yet been resolved. 
 

Page 30 of 74

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application is for the retrospective approval of 1542 sqm additional floorspace and the 
change of use of 995 sqm from the sale of plants and garden-related goods to home, gift and 
furniture sales.  The application site is located approximately 1 mile from Dalton Town Centre 
(as defined within the adopted Local Plan Proposals Map/ Policy C8) and as such is defined as 
being out-of-centre.  
 
 
Principal of Development 
 
Sequential Test 
 
4.2 Paragraph 86 of the NPPF confirms that a sequential test should be applied to planning 
applications for main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre.  This is reinforced 
within Saved Local Plan Policy C2, stating that an out of town site is the least preferred option 
for new retail development, and is also referred to within the emerging Local Plan (emerging 
Policy R7).  The onus is on the applicant to provide a clear and detailed justification that a 
sequentially preferable location is unfeasible. 
 
4.3 Following comments from Policy & Regeneration, the applicant was requested to broaden 
the scope of their sequential test to cover Dalton and Barrow Town Centres.  This approach is 
also in line with the emerging Local Plan’s Main Modifications (September 2018) which states 
that ‘when carrying out the sequential test in order to justify an out of centre location in Dalton, 
consideration must be given to whether there are sequentially preferable sites within 
neighbouring Barrow’ (Modification ref: MAM43).      
 
4.4 An initial sequential test covering Dalton only was undertaken by the applicant in May 2017.  
This confirmed that whilst there are 9 vacant premises within the Town Centre, none of these 
are large enough to accommodate the Home and Garden Centre.  The largest vacant unit is 
4.5 230 sqm (67 Market Street).  The applicant states that they have also considered potential 
sites on the fringes of Dalton, including the existing surface car parks in Market and Broughton 
Street.  The applicant concludes that these sites are in use and as such are not available for 
redevelopment at the current time. 
 
4.6 A refreshed sequential test was then undertaken to respond to Policy & Regeneration 
comments received in September 2018.  This refreshed sequential test analysis (dated 
November 2018) has considered a further five sites which are located within, or on the edge of 
Barrow Town Centre.  All five sites were suggested by the LPA for the applicant to consider.  
Of these, the applicant has concluded that the former Kwiksave unit (Site 3) and Aldi unit (Site 
5) are unavailable, and that the other sites were deemed to be unsuitable and unviable for the 
proposed Garden Centre use given their limited size.  A summary of the sequential test is 
provided in table 1 below.     
 
 
 
 

Page 31 of 74

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



 
Site Address Available Suitable Viable 

1 Former Presbyterian Church, 
School St 

Yes No – insufficient size 798sqm No 

2 Vacant site next to The Range, 
Duke St 

Yes No – insufficient size 
1,291sqm 

No 

3 Former Kwik Save, Holker St No N/A N/A 

4 Units B, C & D, Rawlinson 
St/Abbey Rd 

Yes No – insufficient size 293sqm 
across 3 units 

No 

5 Former Aldi, Hindpool Retail Park No N/A N/A 

 
Table 1: Summary of Sequential Test 

 

4.7 It is considered therefore that the applicant has satisfied the sequential test and as such 
Paragraph 87 of the NPPF, adopted Policy C2 and emerging Policy R7. 
 
Justification of need       
 
4.8 Policy C2 also states that “any retail development outside the town centre, whether it be 
edge of centre or out of centre, must be justified by the applicant on grounds of need”.   
 
4.9 The applicant has demonstrated that there is a need and demand for the non-garden centre 
goods sold at Charnley’s.  The applicant has provided a rationale for the proposal, noting that 
the Centre has had to diversify product mix to ensure a consistency of sales over the winter 
months.  The proportion of sales from non-garden goods equates to 43% of the total sales 
turnover, thus demonstrating that there is a clear demand for the goods sold.       
 
4.10 It is therefore considered that the applicant has demonstrated that there is a need and 
demand for the extended site and the sale of non-garden centre goods, in addition to 
undertaking the sequential test and is thus considered to satisfy Policy C2 (albeit that this 
Policy is considered to have limited weight). 
 
Retail Impact Assessment 
 
4.11 The first criterion of Policy C3 requires that the applications for retail developments outside 
town centres should be accompanied by a Retail Impact Assessment as well as a statement of 
intent from the proposed retail operator.  Whilst Policy C3 does not specify a threshold for 
requiring a Retail Impact Assessment, emerging Policy R9 notes that such an Assessment is 
required where new retail floorspace over 500 sqm is created outside Dalton town centre.   
 
4.12 The application seeks approval for 1,542 sqm additional floorspace (Gross Internal Area) 
and as such, it is considered that a Retail Impact Assessment is therefore required (on the 
basis of the weight applied to the emerging Policy).  The Impact Assessment considers the 
actual uplift of floorspace which is attributed to gift and home (995sqm) and the additional 
indoor garden sales provided within the non-permitted structure (129 sqm)1, thus equating to 
1,124sqm (GIA).   
 
 
 

                                                 
1
 This is the difference between the indoor garden sales which could be sold within the already permitted floorspace (739 

sqm) and the total floorspace dedicated to indoor garden sales (868 sqm). 

Page 32 of 74

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



 
4.13 The applicant submitted the Retail Impact Assessment in November 2018 and considers 
evidence from the Barrow-in Furness Retail and Town Centre Uses Study (February 2013), 
South Lakeland Retail Study Update (February 2012) as well as Experian reports from 2016 
and 2017.  This scope and evidence has been agreed with the LPA in accordance with the 
Planning Practice Guidance (Paragraph 015, Reference ID: 2b-015-20140306).       
 
4.14 It is the Officer’s view that the applicant has appropriately considered the impact of the 
proposal on existing Town Centres up to 2021 and that the Assessment has appropriately 
looked at the impact of the scheme across a wide catchment area to reflect the trade draw of 
the store (all seven zones of the Retail Capacity Study (2013) which includes Dalton, Ulverston 
and Barrow amongst others) to correspond with their actual customer base from a review of 
their loyalty card system. 
 
4.15 The Assessment reviews the anticipated trade diversion assumptions which would 
otherwise have been directed towards similar stores to Charnley’s.  Whilst 56% of trade will be 
diverted from retailers within Barrow Town Centre and 4% from Dalton as well as from other 
out of town retail parks, the retail impact of the proposed development (uplift in floorspace of 
1,124sqm) by 2021 will equate to -0.21% (£0.36m) on Barrow Town Centre and -0.91% 
(£0.03m) on Dalton Town Centre.   
 
4.16 The applicant also notes that turnover is still projected to increase within these Town 
Centres regardless of the impact of the Garden Centre and therefore it is considered that the 
impact on the vitality and viability of Barrow and Dalton Town Centres is negligible and thus not 
significantly adverse.  The proposal therefore complies with Paragraph 90 of the NPPF and 
emerging Policy R9 insofar as this does not prejudice the vitality and/or viability of these Town 
Centres.      
 
4.17 Notwithstanding this, the applicant has confirmed their acceptance to the inclusion of a 
condition which restricts the proportional of gift and home retail floorspace to 995sqm, which 
reflects the existing layout (albeit non-permitted) of the Centre.     
 
4.18 The final criterion of Local Plan Policy C3 states that, in addition to ensuring that proposed 
developments do not prejudice the vitality or viability of Town Centres as a whole, that 
developments creating new retail floorspace outside of Town Centres will also only be 
permitted if they are within an accessible location, or one which can be made accessible.  The 
application site is within 500 metres of a bus stop, and as such it is considered that the third 
criterion of Policy C3 is also met, notwithstanding the fact that the type of bulky goods sold 
means that customers are more likely to travel by car.  It is also worth noting however that this 
part of Policy C3 is considered to be out of date and not in accordance with the NPPF.    
 
4.19 It is therefore considered that the retrospective development adheres to Local Plan Policy 
C2, C3 and emerging Policy R7.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 74

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



 
Local Economic Benefits 
 
4.20 A key material consideration in determining this application is also the impact of the 
proposal on the local economy.  Government places strong emphasis on building a strong and 
competitive economy, and in ensuring that planning decisions create the conditions to enable 
businesses to invest, expand and adapt, and cognisant of local business needs (Paragraph 80, 
NPPF).  This remit is also reinforced within the Council’s Local Plan. 
 
4.21 The application site is currently allocated in the Development Plan as a Local Employment 
Site (Location E11, Policy A1) and covers a 2.5 ha area which incorporates the Garden Centre 
as well as land to the north east (existing Breakers Yard) and land to the south west 
(Crooklands Business Park) and beyond.  Policy A1 confirms that the land is allocated for the 
development of local employment sites and that B1 and B2 uses are acceptable uses within 
this location. 

4.23 The Policy does not set out any restrictions for non B1/B2 uses, and given the Garden 
Centre is an established business, it is considered that the continued use of the site for retail 
use is acceptable and in any event, generates local employment, which is therefore in-keeping 
with the objectives of the Local Plan.  

4.24 The emerging Local Plan proposes to retract the employment allocation, to the area south 
west of Crooklands Business Park only (0.4 ha), but as set out above, as Charnley’s is an 
established business, it is not considered that the expansion and diversification of the garden 
centre is contrary to the principles with the adopted and emerging Local Plan.   

4.25 The applicant has confirmed that the Centre employs 33 members of staff, all of whom 
reside in the local area, and that the business uses a local supply chain for goods (primarily 
food produce for the café) which in turn benefits the local economy.  

Car Parking and Highway Impact 
 
4.26 The application site is located directly to the south east of Ulverston Road, approximately 1 
mile north of Dalton-in-Furness and is sited around 200 metres south west of the A590 
roundabout.   
 
4.27 Vehicular access to the site is off Ulverston Road, via a 7.2 m wide priority junction access 
arrangement. 
 
4.28 Ulverston Road is subject to the national speed limit (60 mph). 
 
4.29 The site is within 500 metres from local bus stops (route number 6/X6) which provides 
services to Ulverston and Barrow approximately every 20 minutes.  Pedestrian access to the 
site from this bus stop is however not straight-forward, given that pedestrians have to 
circumnavigate the roundabout, cross the A590 and then cross the highway again at Ulverston 
Road to access the site, in the absence of a footway on the same side as the application site. 
 
4.30. In addition, due to the nature of goods sold, the majority of customers access the site by 
private car, and this has been evidenced on site.  There are currently 46 car parking spaces on 
site including 2 disabled bays.   

Page 34 of 74

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



 
4.31 The applicant is proposing to create an additional 63 car parking spaces by purchasing the 
freehold of 0.11 ha (0.28 acres) of land from Dalton Motor Breakers.  A Deed of Agreement for 
the sale of this land has been provided to the Council and is dated 5th March 2018.  The 
applicant has however confirmed that the land has not been formally acquired due to the 
release of funds, which will be triggered upon approval of planning permission.  If the Council is 
minded to grant planning permission, a Section 106 agreement will be required to ensure that 
the land purchase completes prior to formally issuing the Decision Notice.   
 
4.32 The applicant has identified that there is capacity to accommodate 109 car parking spaces 
within the existing curtilage and the proposed extended land, which will include the provision of 
5 disabled spaces. 
      
4.33 Cumbria County Council, as Local Highway Authority (LHA) has been consulted on the 
application.  Whilst the car parking numbers proposed are less than that set out within the 
Cumbria Development Design Guide, the LHA has confirmed that the number of spaces 
provided is acceptable on the basis of the current mix of uses and retail floorspace, provided 
that 109 car parking spaces are provided in perpetuity.  If there is any variation to the mix of 
good sold or the provision of additional retail floorspace, additional car parking spaces would 
be required to meet the LHA requirements.  In any event, if the applicant proposes to add 
further retail floorspace or amend the proportion of non-garden centre goods sold to more than 
995sqm, the applicant would be required to submit a new planning application to seek prior 
approval for this.   
 
4.34 Whilst there is no service space provided or proposed as part of the development.  The 
applicant has provided confirmation of vehicle tracking within the car park provided and has 
demonstrated that an articulated HGV can enter and exit the site in forward gear and has a 
sufficient turning circle, without affecting the local highway – Ulverston Road.   
 
4.35 The applicant has also provided a designated loading area to the west of the two-storey 
building.  As verified during the site visit, whilst there are no formal ‘loading bay’ markings to 
indicate that this area is to be kept free of customer cars, there is no car parking bay marking in 
this location.  Notwithstanding this, it is the planning officer’s view that ‘loading bay’ or ‘no 
customer parking’ markings would be beneficial in this location, to ensure that this area is kept 
free for servicing vehicles only.  A suitable worded condition will be suggested to ensure these 
markings are in place.  
 
4.36 The LHA notes that this loading bay area helps to reduce conflict between service and 
customer vehicles although delivery vehicles will still have to carry out reversing manoeuvres 
within the customer car parking area which carries some risk.  The applicant has therefore 
proposed the implementation of a Deliveries Management Plan to help to mitigate this risk, 
which will be a condition if the Council is minded to approve the application.   
 
4.37 The applicant has also submitted a Travel Plan to ensure compliance with Local Transport 
Policies WS3 and LD4, emerging Policy I5 and Paragraph 111 of the NPPF.  The Travel Plan 
seeks to encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport for staff travelling to work and 
proposes a 10% increase in the use of public transport within 5 years and a 15% reduction in 
single car occupancy amongst staff.  The LHA has confirmed that the proposed targets and 
measures contained within it are acceptable but that the Travel Plan will need to be reviewed at 
regular intervals to ensure the targets are achieved.   

Page 35 of 74

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 
4.38 The proposed parking layout (Drawing no: DR1 Revision A) indicates the provision of a 
new cycle parking and motorcycle parking area, to the east of the two-storey building. This will 
provide 8 cycle parking spaces and 3 motorcycle spaces.  The proposal is therefore considered 
to be in accordance with Policy E16 which requires the provision of 6 cycle spaces on site.  
 
4.39 In terms of highway safety and car parking it is therefore considered that the development 
(with the attachment of the conditions as proposed and the S.106 Agreement to ensure the 
additional car parking land is purchased outright) accords with Policy E9, E16 and C1 of the 
Saved Policies of the adopted Local Plan, Local Transport Policies LD5 and LD7, and Cumbria 
County Council’s adopted Development Design Guide. 
 
4.40 Members should also note that following representations from this Authority relating to 
traffic safety associated with this and other developments, Cumbria CC will be examining if the 
existing speed limit is appropriate for this section of road. 
 
Visual Impact 
 
4.41 The application is for the construction of a two-storey linked building, which sits alongside 
the existing Garden Centre and is located on the western side of the site, as well as the 
creation of a covered court-yard area and construction of a mezzanine level. 
 
4.42 The two-storey linked building is prominent in views from Ulverston Road and is set back 
by 60 metres from the main Garden Centre building/ entrance.  The detached building has a 
footprint of 32.59m by 11.9m and is 7.32m in height.  The front elevation features a dwarf stone 
wall, with cedar cladding above and a number of triple paned windows of limited height, with 
roller shutter doors to the loading bay. The remaining elevations are clad in metal sheeting.    
    
4.43 The southwest facing gable elevation and part rear elevation features prominently in views 
when approaching from Dalton, in part due to the siting further forward into the site but also 
due to the natural rise of Ulverston Road. This places the building at a higher level than the 
neighbouring industrial units, increasing its prominence and effective scale. These elevations 
are currently clad in light grey metal sheeting, in contrast to the limestone facing which 
predominantly features in the adjacent industrial estate, and is considered more befitting of the 
rural location. 
 
4.44 The applicant has responded to the comments from previous submitted applications and is 
proposing to install timber panelling to the southwest facing/ right side elevation (as shown on 
Drawing no: 16020/04.01, Revision E), and to paint the metal sheeting on the rear and left side 
elevation to dark green, to match the existing elevations (Drawing no: 16020/04.02, Revision 
E). 
 
4.45 On this basis therefore, it is considered that the visual appearance of the proposal is 
acceptable, and that the development is in accordance with the first criterion on Policy C1, 
Policy D21 and emerging Policy DS5.        
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 74

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
4.46 The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 and covers a site area of 6968sqm 
(0.697 ha), as such a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy is not required to support 
the application.   
 
4.47 The applicant has provided details of the existing drainage (Drawing no: 
17053_SCH01_03, Revision A) which confirms that the surface water drainage from the main 
garden centre building/ covered courtyard drains into a soakaway within the existing car park 
as well as directly into the public sewer.  Surface water run-off from the linked 2 storey building 
is drained via down spouts into two new geocellular soakaways to the north and south.   
 
4.48 Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has been consulted on the 
drainage proposals of the application and confirmed that the surface water run-off is 
appropriately managed using infiltration with soakaways and that the exceedance routes are 
managed properly. 
 
4.49 The LLFA has confirmed that they have no objections to the drainage proposals on the 
basis that surface water run-off is and/or will be appropriately managed utilising an infiltration 
strategy with soakaways and that the exceedance routes are managed properly.   
 
4.50 As such it is considered that the application accords with Saved Policy F6 and the adopted 
Cumbria Development Design Guide.  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The applicant is seeking retrospective approval for the construction of 1,542 sqm floorspace 
as well as the ability to sell non-garden centre goods.  The application site has a complex 
planning history and as a result of the previous planning applications (Reference no: 
2016/0426 and 2017/0312) being withdrawn, the applicant has been able to continue trading in 
breach of planning since before May 2016. The determination of this current application has 
also been delayed due to the need for an extended sequential test and the provision of a Retail 
Impact Assessment to reflect the emerging Local Plan policies. 
 
5.2 The former Crooklands Garden Centre has been transformed and re-branded to Charnley’s 
Home and Garden since October 2016.  This re-brand has coincided with the store selling an 
increased proportion of non-garden centre goods (albeit contrary to the planning consent).  
Customers, upon entering the store, are drawn towards the home and interiors part of the 
business, which now occupies the main part of the building.  The Garden Centre goods are 
located towards the right of the building, within the now covered courtyard area, the linked two-
storey building and outdoor area.  As a result, the garden centre goods appear to have shifted 
to be more secondary in nature. 
 
5.3 The applicant confirms that there is an increasing reliance on the sale of the home, furniture 
and giftware goods, which amounts to 43% of turnover and 36% (995sqm) take-up of 
floorspace.  The applicant has stated that this “helps maintain a choice…more locally as well 
as supporting the garden centre trade in the winter months.  Without this consistency of sales 
throughout the year, the family would not be able to maintain the full time local employment 
and it would only become seasonal activity”.   
 

Page 37 of 74

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



5.4 Whilst there is no doubting that the sales of comparison goods is helping to support the 
business, given the out-of-centre location, there is concern that this proportion of comparison 
goods could detract from the vitality and viability of Dalton Town Centre, against the principles 
of the Local Plan, which is to “encourage the development of Dalton as a retail and service 
centre”  
  
5.5 The applicant has however submitted a sequential test assessment and demonstrated, 
through trading history, that there is a need for the comparison goods sold.  The submitted 
Impact Assessment also demonstrates that there is negligible impact on the vitality and viability 
of Dalton and Barrow Town Centres.  Furthermore, a large proportion of the non-garden centre 
goods sold within the Centre comprises furniture, sofas and kitchens, and are therefore ‘bulky 
goods’ by their nature, which lend themselves to an out-of-centre location.   
 
5.6 It is considered therefore, if the Committee is minded to approve the application, that a 
suitably worded condition can be added onto the permission to limit the type of goods able to 
sold at the Centre.  This would therefore preserve the vitality and viability of the Town Centre 
and prevent open A1 use.       
 
5.7 In terms of visual impact, the detached building is a prominent feature from Ulverston Road 
and the view from Dalton.  The proposed use of materials will however ensure that the visual 
impact is mitigated and are in-keeping with the existing building.          
 
5.8 It is considered therefore that the design of the Centre along with the additional elevational 
treatments will serve to mitigate against the adverse effect on the landscape, and the 
development can be seen to comply with Policy C1 (first part) and Policy D21.   
 
5.9 The applicant has demonstrated that surface water drainage is appropriately managed on 
site, and as such the development complies with Policy F6 and Chapter N of the Cumbria 
Development Design Guide.  
 
5.10 The applicant has sought to mitigate the Local Highway Authority (LHA) concerns by 
demonstrating the provision of 109 car parking spaces within the site’s curtilage and through 
the purchase of additional land.  Whilst there is a nominal shortfall of parking spaces against 
the adopted Cumbria Development Design Guide standards, the LHA has confirmed that the 
justification provided is acceptable, provided that the quantum of floorspace to home and 
giftware is restricted and that conditions are added which require a Travel Plan to be approved 
and implemented as well as a Delivery Management Plan to satisfy the lack of servicing 
provisions on site.       
 
5.11 The recommendation is therefore to approve the application on the basis that the 
development accords with the Saved Policies of the Local Plan, Local Transport Plan, the 
adopted Cumbria Development Design Guide and the National Planning Policy Framework.       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38 of 74

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that; 
 
A. Subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement which requires; 
 

i. the purchase of land adjoining the existing customer car park, as indicated on the 
application documents and,  

ii. the permanent retention of that land for the duration of the retail operation ensuring 
uninterrupted access for customers and, 

iii. the construction and laying out of an expanded car parking area in accordance with prior 
details agreed in writing with the Planning Authority within 3 months of the approval date 
(to provide a total of 109 car parking spaces) and, 

iv. a contribution of £ 6,000 to fund the Cumbria CC Travel Plan Monitoring function,  
 
then 

  
B.  Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the 

following conditions: - 
 

 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with the 
application dated 8th June 2018 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 

Parking Layout (Drawing no: DR1, Revision a) 
Proposed Ground Floor Layout (Drawing no: 16020/03.01) 
Proposed First Floor Layout (Drawing no: 16020/03/02) 
Proposed Front & Side Elevations (Drawing no: 16020/04.01, Revision E) 
Proposed Rear & Side Elevations (Drawing no: 16020/04.02, Revision E) 
Existing Drainage Layout (Drawing no: 17053_SCH01_03, Revision A) 
North, West, South & East Elevations (dated November 2017, Spatial Data Limited) 
Ground & First Floor Layout Plan (dated November 2017, Spatial Data Limited) 
  
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved by 
the Planning Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39 of 74

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
2. Prior to the installation of the external elevational surface materials, samples of the proposed 
elevational materials hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and thereafter retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise its impact upon the 
surrounding area. 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of the construction of the additional car parking area to the east, 
details of the proposed boundary treatments, landscaping and surfacing, including a schedule 
of materials and a schedule for implementation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by, the Planning Authority. The subsequently approved treatments shall be completed to the 
satisfaction of the Planning Authority prior to occupation of the expanded car parking area and 
thereafter be permanently retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the character and appearance of the area by ensuring that the site is 
adequately screened. 
 
4. Within 3 months from the date of approval, all car parking areas must be completed, 
including surface drainage, the provision of ‘Loading Only’ markings, and spaces clearly 
marked out in accordance with the parking layout plan submitted as part of the application, and 
thereafter permanently retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior consent for any 
variation.   
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and retained for the use 
associated with the development hereby permitted. 
 

5. Within 3 months from the date of approval, a Deliveries Management Plan shall be prepared 
and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their approval, and the subsequently 
approved Plan shall thereafter be implemented for the operational life of the premises unless 
the Planning Authority gives prior express consent for any variation.  The Plan should outline 
the process and procedures to ensure deliveries are properly planned and managed, including 
safety measures to protect staff and customers, and measures to reduce the number of HGVs 
that need to make deliveries to the site and/or reduce the number of HGVs delivering within 
trading hours. 
  
Reason 

  
To reduce potential vehicle conflict and improve customer and staff safety on the public 
highway and within the car park. 

Page 40 of 74

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



  
Post-Occupation Conditions. 
 
8. The provision of 109 car parking spaces (as set out within the Parking Layout Plan) shall be 
retained and be available at all times and shall not be removed or altered without the prior 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of pedestrian and highway safety. 
 
9. Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
(England) Order 2015, (or any legislation re-enacting or revoking that legislation with or without 
modification), there shall be no subdivision of the unit or any additional internal floorspace 
created (including any insertion of mezzanine floors) not covered by this permission without the 
prior express consent of the Planning Authority. 
  
Reason 
 
In order to safeguard the vitality and viability of Dalton and Barrow Town Centres. 
 
10. A maximum of up to 995 square metres of GIA floorspace may be used for the retailing 
of the following goods: 
a. Furniture and soft furnishings,  
b. Kitchen units and accessories 
c. China, glass and cookware 
d. Giftware and crafts 
e. Cards and stationery  
 
Reason 
 
A general retail outlet in this location would not normally be permitted, as it would be potentially 
detrimental to the viability of established shopping centres. 

 
11. Upon the annual anniversary of the planning decision date, a report reviewing the 
effectiveness of the Travel Plan (including any necessary amendments or measures) shall be 
prepared by the occupier and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval.  This 
report shall be prepared on an annual basis to reflect the travel planning position for each year 
of trading.  
  
Reason 
 
In order to aid the delivery of sustainable transport objectives and support Local Transport Plan 
policies WS3 and LD4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 74

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



Informatives 
    

 This development will require approval under the Building Regulations. Please contact 
your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to how to 
proceed. 

 A BAPA agreement will be required between the applicant and Network Rail. 

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Page 42 of 74

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



A

 

5

9

0

Car Park

Car Park

Extend Fence

New Building

Existing Fence

New Gate

Car Park

project no.

scale @ A3

dwg no.

drawn

chk'd

date:

status:

project:

client:

title:

discipline

Revision

Charnleys Garden Centre

Parking Layout

06/2/2018

1:2500

Transport Planning

JTP 02117

DR1

SAA

Planning  (not for construction)

a

2018/0364

Page 43 of 74

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 8



4550

A B

1
1

0
9

4

C D E H

A B C D E H

2a

3

1

1a

31850

45504550

3
6

9
8

4550

C/L

4550

up

3
6

9
8

3
6

9
8

1
1

9
2

1

G

F G

F

2a

3

1

1a

2
2

4550 4550

C/L C/L C/L C/L C/L C/L C/L

C/L

C/L

C/L

C/L

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

C/L C/L

Roller shutter door with over speed brake

installed to prevent sudden falling

Roller shutter door with over speed brake

installed to prevent sudden falling

Drawing No. Revision.

Date. Scale.Drawn.

Status.

Consulting Engineers Ltd

Drawing Title.

Client/Project.

Rev. Date. Notes. Init.

Notes.

This drawing is protected by copyright and must not be copied or

reproduced without the written consent of M&P Gadsden Consulting

Engineers Ltd. No dimensions are to be scaled from this drawing. All

dimensions and sizes to be checked on site. ©

16020/03.01

22/03/2016

IG

Planning Application

1:100 - A3

New Extension

Crooklands Garden Centre

Dalton-In-Furness

Proposed Ground Floor Layout

1:50 - A1

2018/0364

Page 44 of 74

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 8



A B C D E H

A B C D E H

2a

3

1

1a

32594

1
1
9
2
1

G

F G

F

2a

3

1

1a

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

down

Notes.

Drawing No. Revision.

Date. Scale.Drawn.

Status.

Consulting Engineers Ltd

Drawing Title.

Client/Project.

Rev. Date. Notes. Init.

Notes.

This drawing is protected by copyright and must not be copied or

reproduced without the written consent of M&P Gadsden Consulting

Engineers Ltd. No dimensions are to be scaled from this drawing. All

dimensions and sizes to be checked on site. ©

16020/03.02

22/03/2016

IG

Planning Application

1:100 - A3

New Extension

Crooklands Garden Centre

Dalton-In-Furness

Proposed First Floor Layout

1:50 - A1

2018/0364

Page 45 of 74

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 8



Roof Cladding to be 80mm 

Kingspan KS1000 RW or similar (U-value 0.25 W/m2k)

Stone Face

RWP

Area

Existing Display

32594

11921

Roof cladding to be 80mm Kingspan

FRONT ELEVATION

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION

7
3

2
3

Timber cladding

and Storage 

Roller Shutter Doors

Timber cladding 

Kingspan KS1000 RW or similar (U-value 0.25 W/m2k)

Drawing No. Revision.

Date. Scale.Drawn.

Status.

Consulting Engineers Ltd

M & P Gadsden

Drawing Title.

Client/Project.

Rev. Date. Notes. Init.

A 05-08-16 Addition of Loading Bay Access RB

B 24-08-16 General Amendments MD

C 18-11-16 B.Regs Re-submission MD

D 18-01-17 Building Control Amendments MD

E 16-03-18 Cladding Colouring OB

Notes.

This drawing is protected by copyright and must not be copied or

reproduced without the written consent of M&P Gadsden Consulting

Engineers Ltd. No dimensions are to be scaled from this drawing. All

dimensions and sizes to be checked on site. ©

16020/04.01

22/03/2016

IG

Building Regulations

1:100 - A3

New Extension

Crooklands Garden Centre

Dalton-In-Furness

Proposed Front & Side Elevations

1:50 - A1

E

2018/0364

Page 46 of 74

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 8



KS1000 RW or similar laid vertically

Sheet wall cladding to be 60mm

REAR ELEVATION

Roof Cladding to be 80mm 

RWP

Existing Display

and Storage Area

32594

Kingspan KS1000 RW or similar (U-value 0.25 W/m2k)

(U-value 0.35 W/m2k)

7
5

1
0

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION

11921

Roof cladding to be 80mm Kingspan

KS1000 RW or similar laid vertically

32594

Sheet wall cladding to be 60mm

Kingspan KS1000 RW or similar (U-value 0.25 W/m2k)

(U-value 0.35 W/m2k)

Drawing No. Revision.

Date. Scale.Drawn.

Status.

Consulting Engineers Ltd

M & P Gadsden

Drawing Title.

Client/Project.

Rev. Date. Notes. Init.

A 05-08-16 Addition of Loading Bay Access RB

B 24-08-16 General Amendments MD

C 18-11-16 B.Regs Re-submission MD

D 18-01-17 Building Control Amendments MD

E 16-03-18 Cladding Colouring OB

Notes.

This drawing is protected by copyright and must not be copied or

reproduced without the written consent of M&P Gadsden Consulting

Engineers Ltd. No dimensions are to be scaled from this drawing. All

dimensions and sizes to be checked on site. ©

16020/04.02

22/03/2016

IG

Building Regulations

1:100 - A3

New Extension

Crooklands Garden Centre

Dalton-In-Furness

Proposed Rear & Side Elevations

1:50 - A1

E

2018/0364

Page 47 of 74

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



A

 

5

9

0

New Building

SITE BOUNDARY

D
D

D

D

D

D

D
D

D

D

D

D

D

D

MH

MH

RE

MH

MH

ACO DRAIN

PUBLIC SEWER
INTERNAL
DOWNSPOUT

D

Drawing No. Revision.

Date. Scale.Drawn.

Status.

Consulting Engineers Ltd

M & P Gadsden

1:500 - A3

Drawing Title.

Client/Project.

Notes.

This drawing is protected by copyright and must not be copied or

reproduced without the written consent of M&P Gadsden Consulting

Engineers Ltd. No dimensions are to be scaled from this drawing. All

dimensions and sizes to be checked on site. ©

OB09/08/17

EXISTING DRAINAGE LAYOUT

17053_SCH01_03

PROPOSED ALETRATIONS @
Crooklands Garden Centre,
Dalton-in-Furness

 DESIGN STAGE

Rev.   Date.            Notes.                                                  Init.

Key:

D - Down spout from roof

- Soakaway

- Drainage run

A

A        18-09-17      Client Alterations                                 RB

2018/0364

Page 48 of 74

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 8



2018/0364

Page 49 of 74

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



2018/0364

Page 50 of 74

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



B18/2018/0610 
Planning Committee  

5th February 2019  

  

  
Application Number 
: B18/2018/0610 Date Valid :22/08/2018 

Address : Land adjacent to 
Proposed Centralised Training 
Facility Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Amended gate position and road layout to Crossfields Gate 
(Gate 10) to allow for two way traffic and use by all vehicle types and new 
vehicle turning and waiting bay. New landscaped area for visual screening. 

Ward : Barrow Island Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr Tim Clark, BAE 
Systems  

Agent : Mrs Kathryn Skinner, 
McBains  

Statutory Date : 17/10/2018 Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub    
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-080 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-127 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-170 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D60 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy E6 

 

Page 51 of 74

Page 79

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2018/0610


 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - 
Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - 
Sustainable Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - 
Design 

4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy EC3 - 
Managing Development of Employment Land 

Summary of Main Issues 

The existing gate, which is sited almost opposite a pair of cottages, has 
increased in usage in recent years, with previous restrictions only relating to 
the weight of the vehicles using the gate.  The new design aims to improve 
access for employees of BAE whilst creating a better segregation with the 
cottages, and introducing identified parking for the occupiers.  It is also 
proposed to remove the weight restriction to allow HGVs to access, but with 
adequate acoustic screening to mitigate any negative effects, in addition to an 
hours restriction in order to protect the more sensitive night time hours.  

Non Material Considerations 

None   

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Buccleuch Dock Road 1, 1A,  
 

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 2 0 

 

 

Page 52 of 74

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 

List of Organisation Responses 

Public Protection Services Barrow Borough Council 13/12/2018 

“I can confirm that I have received and reviewed the ‘Noise Impact 
Assessment’ Report No. 18/0629/R1, dated 16th November 2018 and I would 
like to make the following points: There has been long standing issues with 
regards to noise and the operation of Gate 10 as access for the site south of 
Michaelson Road. These issues relate to noise and light nuisance. While I 
appreciate that the area is heavily industrialised and BAE systems holds a 
considerable stake in the area, there are two residential cottages that are 
within 10 meters of the current Gate 10 position and consideration should be 
given to protect there residential amenity before the character of the area has 
breached a certain threshold of no return. 

Before I comment on the application, I would draw your attention to my 
comments made on planning application B12/2015/0389 dated 26th May 2016 
whereby I said: 

“Traffic:- Section 3.2.2 of the Transport Statement states that delivery 
vehicles for the development will utilise Buccleuch Dock Road. It is important 
to notify all parties that Buccleuch Dock Road is not an adopted road despite 
its name, therefore it is classed as ‘private land’ owned by Barrow Borough 
Council beyond ‘Gate 10’. My concern relates to statutory nuisance, while I 
have no objections to the development in principle, use of this gate 24 hours a 
day across from residential properties may create a noise and light nuisance 
issue. Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, if a statutory nuisance 
from vehicles on private land is identified, this authority has a statutory duty to 
serve notice on an individual or company responsible for the noise. However, 
as previously stated- the land is owned by Barrow Borough Council and we 
cannot serve notice on our selves, so I request that this issue is carefully 
assessed to protect residents of the two ‘ Cricket Field Cottages’ from noise 
and light nuisance”. 

Page 53 of 74

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 

“Furthermore, although the transport statement alludes that students and staff 
will use on and off site parking with two external trainers attending the site 
each day, I have noted that in the ‘Site Redevelopment Plan’ Noise 
Assessment Report Ref: PB1700/R09/304368/Newc, Dated 22/04/15, (Figure 
5 of appendix A), the area around the proposed facility has been designated 
as ‘proposed operational Car Park B’!; Table 13 in the same report shows a 
provision of 341 car spaces provided during construction and 198 post 
construction, potential equating to 396 car movements through Gate 10, not 
including delivery and general vehicle movements 24hrs a day. This is further 
bolstered with Table C1 (Traffic Data used in the Air Quality Assessment) from 
the submitted Air Quality Report Ref (REF: I&BPB5118R005F01, Dated 5th 
May 2016) which shows ‘Link 58’ –(2014= 637 AADT increasing to 1953 
AADT)” 

“Therefore it appears to me that Gate 10 will now become the main exit 
point for every vehicle exiting the BAE site South of Michaelson Road 
Bridge”. 
 
My primary concern relates to Gate 10 being used 24hrs a day 7 days per 
week, 365 days per year with no limit on vehicle size or amount. 

While I appreciate that the acoustic report assumes a 1.2dB increase to 48dB 
from 47dB, with an acoustic barrier in situ, I can confirm that this increase 
would be un-noticeable given an hourly LAeq average as stated but a HGV 
would be certainly noticed as LAmax and times have not been stated. 
Furthermore, Gate 10 was an emergency exit in a fence some 3 years ago 
which opened up forming part of a one way system 2 years ago and now it a 
major entry and access point for employees and deliveries. Therefore noise 
from Gate 10 would have been virtually zero some three years ago. Taking 
this into consideration, the original background of 47dB would be extremely 
excessive regardless of an acoustic barrier. (Are we to assume the character 
of the area has changed?) It is also worth noting that 48.2dB at the nearest 
residential receptor (Cemetery Cottages) is above 47dB recommended by 
WHO for an open window in a bedroom. (i.e 35dB +12dB open window), thus 
indicating a 36dB SPL in the bedroom. If this was occurring on a regular basis, 
then all traffic would be noticeable passing through Gate 10 and potentially 
causing sleep deprivation. 

 

 

Page 54 of 74

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



However, having stated the above it appears as though Gate 10 has been 
used for a few years and no recent complaints regarding ‘transport’ noise have 
been received, this leads me to believe that some noise has been accepted 
and the character of the area has changed! However, I would advise that HGV 
deliveries are time restricted in line with those recently imposed under 
planning application 2017/0328 dated 6/7/2017: 

Delivery hours Mon-Fri 8.00am- 18.00hrs 

Sat 8.00am- 16.00hrs 

Sun and Bank Hol- No deliveries. 

Finally I would make two last points, the acoustic barrier is projected to be 1.5 
meters high and constructed of a solid dense structure. This may be visually 
obtrusive to the occupants of the Cemetery cottages and unlike the view 
visualised on Page 4 of the Planting Design Concepts Report No. BAE10-
ALA-00-XX-L-RP-0001, dated November 2018. There is no lighting projected 
on any plan submitted, I would assume that the security booth and the area in 
general would have lighting installed and a plan should be submitted taking 
into consideration the direction, luminosity and overspill perceived by residents 
in the two cottages. 

If you would like any further clarification in this matter, please don’t hesitate to 
contact me further." 

Public Protection Services Barrow Borough Council 10/01/2019 

“I have given the application and information submitted considerable thought. I 
would thank Mathew Hayes for responding to my consultation response 
concerns regarding noise levels. I can confirm that the noise levels projected 
would be fairly accurate given a known scenario, i.e. knowing what is coming 
and going through the gates on a regular basis. What we can’t account for is 
what operations will be like 5-10 years from now. We must remember that 
Gate 10 was nothing more than a rusty fence opening some three year ago 
with no movement of traffic. However, I must also take into consideration that 
the character of the immediate area has changed 

I would advise that HGV deliveries are time restricted ‘similar’ to those recently 
imposed under planning application 2017/0328 dated 6/7/2017: 

 

Page 55 of 74

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



Delivery hours Mon-Fri 07.00hrs- 19.00hrs 

Sat 8.00am- 16.00hrs 

Sun and Bank Hol- No deliveries. 

If the nature of the facility changes and/ or operating times for the gate 
including HGV’s is requiring change, this can then be by planning application 
and can be considered at that time based upon sound fact, i.e. given a new 
scenario or noise levels. Therefore I believe the time limitation condition to be 
relevant and reasonable. This will protect residents from LA MAX Peak noise 
events occurring during the night which would undoubtedly wake the residents 
up. 

If you require any further information regarding this matter, please don’t 
hesitate to contact me." 

Public Protection Services Barrow Borough Council 22/01/2019 

"I have reviewed the times stated in the BAE email below which states the 
following: 

Unrestricted 24/7 access for all cars and transit type vans, possibly with a 
weight limit condition of 3.5 ton vehicles having unrestricted 24/7 access in/ 
out at the gate. 

All HGV’s to have unrestricted access 7am – 7pm mon - fri 

Sat 8.00am- 16.00hrs 

Sun & B/H 8.00am- 16.00hrs 

I believe these times are reasonable as access is required for the facility and 
these would fall in line with other times specified on other applications 
permitted in the borough. 

 

 

 

 

Page 56 of 74

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



 

A sticking point was discussed in relation to HGV deliveries and movements 
during the night. My concern is not that the gate is being used by HGV’s 
during a specific timeframe, my concern has related to loading and unloading 
near to the cottages in an area known as the ‘turning and waiting area’ on the 
proposed plan. Having considered limiting the amount of HGV vehicle 
movements outside the above stated times to 25 per month as proposed by 
BAE, I would deem this reasonable as I would suspect that they would also 
seek to increase this in the future but 25 movements would act as a starting 
point to see how this new operation would be accepted given numerous 
‘unknowns’. 

Furthermore, if a vehicle management plan was to be suggested, I would 
advise that signage is placed in a prominent position advising HGV drivers to 
have due regard for neighbouring residents when in the waiting area. 

Image follows  (example of signage) see original 

If you require any further clarification in this matter, please don’t hesitate to 
contact me further." 

 Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 30/08/2018 

“No comment” 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 04/09/2018 

"Our response is the following: 

This part of the BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation 
(Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) 2001 Regulations. There 
are no objections to the proposed development based on the information 
provided but it should be noted that the proposed development is situated 
within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of the site. Cumbria County 
Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for  Nuclear Regulation, 
have certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises 
in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of 
the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site.  
Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application 
being approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office  to allow for 
further discussion". 

 

Page 57 of 74

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The existing gate is located at the eastern end of Buccleuch Dock Road, 
adjacent to the newly constructed Academy for Skills and Knowledge (Central 
Training Facility).  Immediately opposite the gate are two private dwellings, 
known as 'Cricket Field Cottages', located outside of the operation site and 
planning application boundary.  Buccleuch Dock Road also provides access to 
staff car parks, and is itself lined with car parking along the section closest to 
the gate.  Where it terminates just beyond the cottages, the road turns into a 
track providing access to allotment gardens. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Amended gate position and road layout to Crossfields Gate (Gate 10) to 
allow for two way traffic and use by all vehicle types and new vehicle turning 
and waiting bay. New landscaped area for visual screening. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1983/0324 Erection and layout for contractors site huts on land to the east 
of and athe southern end of Buccleuch Dock Road.  Appcond 04/05/1983 

3.2 2002/0844  Non-compliance with condition no.4 attached to approval 
6/83/0324 to widen gateway to 6.8 metres (retrospective).  Appcond 
29/10/2002 
 
3.3 B12/2016/0389 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock 
Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria New training facility comprising part single 
storey teaching accommodation and part double storey workshop and ancillary 
accommodation with hard standing service yard area and amenity space. 
Demolition of existing buildings and structures on site. Appcond 18/08/2016 
 
3.4 B18/2017/0328 Proposed Centralised Training Facility at Buccleuch Dock 
Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Application for variation of condition no. 3 of 
planning permission 2016/0389 to allow a variation of approved delivery hours. 
APPCOND 16/08/2017 
  

 

 

Page 58 of 74

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The area surrounding the application site has changed in character in 
recent years due to the increased usage of the Crossfields Gate (now referred 
to as Gate 10 by BAE), alongside the construction of the training facility and 
Calibration Lab car park.  More traffic uses the gate than before, which is 
restricted only by weight (35 cwt.) rather than the hours of use.  Whilst this 
restricts heavier goods vehicles, it does permit unrestricted access for cars.  
This has lead to some conflict between residents and BAE due to increased 
disturbance (and alleged inconsiderate parking).  As such, BAE propose to 
remodel the gate to prevent future occurrences, but also allow for larger 
vehicles to access the gate and this section of the yard.  The redesign and 
realignment of the access provides a more clearly defined shipyard entrance, 
separating it from the dwellings and from the access to the allotments which 
would appear as a more secondary route.  The proposal includes an area of 
landscaping to help screen the yard and access for the residents which 
should improve the visual amenity for residents over the current arrangement 
which directly faces the yard and gate.  As was advised in the councils' pre-
application advice service, the proposal has now incorporated an acoustic 
screen designed to help mitigate the additional potential for noise.  

4.2 The applicant considers that the removal of restrictions to allow for 
additional usage of the gate by heavier vehicles will assist the operational 
development of this section of the yard and improving efficiency etc. by 
allowing more direct servicing for this area.  Whilst the NPPF has a strong 
emphasis on supporting the expansion of businesses from an economic 
sustainability perspective, the reduction of existing restrictions has obvious 
potential implications for the residents of the two dwellings immediately 
adjacent.  The supporting Transport Assessment (TA) submitted examines the 
existing and proposed vehicle movements, to demonstrate the level of 
change.  The TA states at 5.3 & 5.4: 

"5.3.1  It is anticipated that the existing access and egress arrangements 
would be retained for the majority of traffic.  The proposed arrangement would 
however provide BAES with added flexibility to accommodate HGV 
movements via Gate 10, for the purposes of servicing and deliveries, including 
materials." 

"5.3.2  As demonstrated in Table 5.1, the number of daily HGVs utilising Gate 
10 is forecast to be relatively small, totalling approximately seven movements 
(14 two-way trips)." 

 

Page 59 of 74

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



"5.4.1 The proposed access arrangement is not expected to result in a 
material change in the assignment of traffic on the local highway.  It is 
therefore implicit that there will be no material impact on the operational 
characteristics of the Michaelson Rd/Buccleuch Dock Road junction." 

4.3 In effect, the only change or additional traffic is the HGV movements 
through gate 10, expected to be approximately 14 in total, spread throughout 
the day.  The TA concludes at 6.2 that: 

"The proposals would not have a significant negative impact on the local 
highway network.  In view of the above positive findings it has been 
demonstrated that the proposed development is acceptable in highway, traffic 
and transportation terms."   

4.4 However, this additional movement accounts for the largest vehicles, which 
provide the most potential for causing disturbance.  Accordingly the design 
builds in mitigation in the form of visual relief/screening and an acoustic barrier 
to prevent excessive noise transmission and create a buffer between the 
houses and the operational dock area (considered to be a positive in the TA 
report conclusion).  This element has resulted in the delay in reporting the 
proposal to members, as further clarity was sought in the form of a Noise 
Impact Assessment (NIA) alongside the incorporation of the previously 
advised acoustic screen given the potential for additional disruption for 
residents. 

4.5 The NIA considers the existing layout against the proposed, and analyses 
the significance of the assessed noise levels.  It shows that the existing layout 
would provide an noise level of 47.0 dB, whilst the proposed layout with the 
acoustic barrier increases this to 48.2 dB.  It states in the results and 
conclusions of the report: 

"4.5.2  The results show that noise levels due to vehicle movements and 
service yard activities at AP1 (proposed layout) will increase by up to 1.2 dB.  
This increase is below the Lowest Observed Adverse Effect Level as detailed 
within table T1 above and so is considered acceptable." 

"5.2  (...)  The assessment has shown that an acoustic barrier is required to 
ensure that the noise impact is below the Lowest Observable Adverse Effect 
Level." 

"5.3  With the barrier in place the noise impact is assessed to be below the 
LOAEL and so noise should not be considered as a reason to refuse planning 
permission." 

Page 60 of 74

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



4.6 These figures relate to an average noise level (LAeq) which has the effect of 
lessening the impact of infrequent spikes in noise levels (LAmax). As the HGV 
movements are quite limited and planned to be spread over the course of the 
day, minimal impact is seen in the average levels.  However, further clarity 
was sought from the report author regarding the peak levels and whether 
these in their own right would be unacceptable.  The response stated, 

"We have now calculated the LAmax from the current and proposed activities. 
The highest predicted levels come from the unloading operations within the 
CTF service yard which produces the highest levels of 76 dB LAmax. This 
activity will not change or intensify due to the proposed gate alterations and so 
the highest max levels will not increase from the existing situation." 

4.7 Having discussed the findings with the Council's Public Protection team, it is 
concluded that the proposed relaxation of the vehicle weight limit will not 
significantly alter the current situation, given that they can manouvre to the 
area via other access points.  It is however considered prudent to limit the 
hours that larger vehicles (over 3.5 tonnes) can use the access, as the lower 
night time background noise levels will make the peak noise events more 
noticeable and likely cause sleep disturbance.  In addition to an hours 
condition, a vehicle management plan is also required prior to operation to 
provide best management principles; eg to reduce unnecessary noise from 
idling engines etc. 

4.8 Visually the landscaping scheme softens the current hard edge provided by 
the secure fencing, which should improve the immediate outlook and character 
for the residents.  The new layout provides a better level of segregation with 
the addition of the landscaped buffer zone; it also provides for a resident 
parking bay and a defined access for allotment holders.  Whilst there is no 
indicated parking provision for allotment holders, the current parking is 
informal and such space still remains beyond the cottages.  The overriding 
benefit however is that this realignment and buffer area should help prevent 
the conflict experienced previously.  It can be considered a definite 
improvement over the current arrangement, both in terms of visual amenity 
and by creating a more delineated development which should aid residential 
amenity.  The road is adequate in width (4.8m) to permit emergency vehicle 
access. 

 

 

 

Page 61 of 74

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposal benefits the economic sustainability of the business by 
allowing a more efficient use of this section of the yard which has recently 
been brought into more active use with the construction and opening of the 
Academy for Skills and Knowledge.  The Public Protection officer considers 
that sufficient mitigation has been provided in the form of an acoustic barrier to 
minimise the increased noise levels associated with the HGV movements.  
The small increase in noise is outweighed by the benefits the scheme 
represents - the increased residential amenity provided from the landscaped 
buffer which is both more visually attractive and creates a more segregated 
arrangement keeping industrial traffic separate from residents and allotment 
users.  Finally, the operation is partially restricted in that heavier vehicles are 
only permitted to use the gate between the hours of 07:00 - 19:00, but with an 
allowance of up to 25 critical movements (defined as a round trip) per month 
outside of these, with prior warning for residents where possible.   

5.2 On balance the proposal represents an improved layout which should not 
be significantly detrimental to residential amenity, and is visually an 
improvement. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard 
Duration Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 20/08/18 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied by 
conditions attached to this consent. 
 

Page 62 of 74

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



Site Location Plan - BAE10-MCB-XX-XX-DR-A-0001 D5 - P3 
Existing Site Plan - BAE10-MCB-XX-XX-DR-A-0002 D5 - P2 
Amended Proposed Site Layout Plan BAE10-MCB-XX-XX-DR-A-0003-D5-P5 
Amended Landscape General Arrangement BAE10-ALA-00-XX-DR-L-0002 
D5 P02 
 
Transport Statement, BAE Systems, Gate 10, ref: BAE10-RHDHV-XX-XX-RP-
D-0001 rev 1.0/Final 
Noise Impact Assessment, BAE Systems, Gate 10, Report 18/0629/R1 rev 0 
Amended Planting Design Concepts November 2018 BAE10-ALA-00-XX-L-
RP-0001 PR2 (Amendment received 15/1/2019) 
Amended Landscape Maintenance Plan BAE10-ALA-00-XX-RP-0002 P02 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
3. No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it 
is in accordance with details that have previously been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Such details shall include 
location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. 
Any such lighting shall at all times be directed and shielded so as to minimise 
light spillage outside of the application site, and shall not thereafter be altered, 
other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details, without 
the prior consent in writing of the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To minimise light pollution in accordance with Saved policy D63 of the Barrow 
Local Plan Review 1996-2006, and in order to protect the residential amenities 
of the area. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
4. The development shall not be brought into beneficial use until a Delivery 
Vehicle Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. The Plan shall take into account the impacts from the 
hereby approved scheme and must provide details of: 
 
a) Measures for providing advanced warning to adjacent residents of the 
scheduling and timing of vehicle movements outside of the normal permitted 
hours; 

Page 63 of 74

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



b) A log book to be provided to record the number of movements made 
outside of the stated hours in any calendar month, to be made available on 
request; 
c) Measures to prevent waiting on the highway outside of the site and to 
reduce and prevent unnecessary engine idling noise from waiting HGV's and 
other vehicles within the site compound; 
d) The details of unloading and handling facilities for deliveries and measures 
to reduce unnecessary disturbance during night time hours; 
e) Additional signage to make delivery vehicles/drivers aware of the presence 
of nearby residential properties. 
 
The development shall subsequently operate in accordance with the approved 
management plan. 

Reason 
 
In the interests of ensuring highway safety and efficiency and prevent 
unnecessary disturbance to nearby dwellings. 
 
5. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping (BAE10-ALA-00-XX-DR-L-0002 D5 P02, Amended Planting 
Design Concepts November 2018 BAE10-ALA-00-XX-L-RP-0001 PR2 
(Amendment received 15/1/2019)and the Amended Landscape Maintenance 
Plan BAE10-ALA-00-XX-RP-0002 P02) shall be carried out in the first planting 
and seeding seasons following beneficial use of the development. Any trees or 
plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased, 
shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written 
consent to any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
6. The acoustic barrier as shown on drawing ref: BAE10-MCB-XX-XX-DR-A-
0003-D5-P5 must be constructed in accordance with the specification 
(18/0629/SPC1) within the Cole Jarman Noise Impact Assessment report 
18/0629/R1 and must be in situ prior to the beneficial use of the development 
hereby approved and thereafter be permanently retained. 

 
 

Page 64 of 74

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
7. No Heavy Goods Vehicle (exceeding 3.5 tonne) movements/deliveries shall 
be permitted through from the access gate hereby approved, outside the hours 
of Mon-Fri 07.00hrs- 19.00hrs and Sat, Sun & Bank Holidays 8.00am- 
16.00hrs. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
8. Notwithstanding the limitations placed upon the development by virtue of 
Condition No.7, the access gate may operate outside of those hours for a 
maximum of 25 movements in any calendar month subject to compliance with 
the mitigation measures to be agreed in the required Delivery Vehicle 
Management Plan in Condition No.4. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to meet the special requirements of the applicant, and in order to 
protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
Informative 
  

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please 
speak to the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out 

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for 
further advice as to how to proceed. 

 

   

  

  

Page 65 of 74

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



2018/0610

Page 66 of 74

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 8



2018/0610

Page 67 of 74

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 8



2018/0610

Page 68 of 74

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 8



1

BOC
Gas Store

Mix A

Mix A

Stipa gigantea
Deschampsia cespitosa

5no. Acer platanoides 

Deschampsia cespitosa 

Stipa gigantea

Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

Refer to McBains drawings for service 
yard and road layout 

Secure perimeter fence, 
Refer to McBains drawings

Gabion basket: 
76.2 x 76.2mm mesh with 3mm wires
Stone: 'Goldmire' Limestone locally 
sourced (or equal)

2no. Parking bays 

Buccleuch Dock Road

Acoustic Fence,
Refer to Acoustics Consultan Report

Amenity Block Planting

Species Specification Density

Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

Stipa gigantea

Deschampsia cespitosa

Amenity grass 

Turf Supplier

Rolawn Medallion Rolawn

C, 3L

C, 3L

C, 3L

5/m2

Trees

Species Specification

Acer platanoides 25-30 Girth; Height 450-650mm;RB; 3x; Extra heavy standard; 
clear stem 200mm min.

Planting Schedule 

Mix A

Species Specification Density

Alchemilla mollis

Salvia nemorosa 'Ostfriesland'

Sedum Autumn Joy

Stipa tenuissima

C, 3L

C, 3L

C, 3L

C, 3L

6/m2

%

15

40

15

30

KEY

D5-PLANNING 

McBains

Landscape General Arrangment

BAE Gate 10

BAE10-ALA-00-XX-DR-L-0002

A1

06.07.2018

SUITABILITY

DRAWING NUMBER :

DRAWING SCALE :

PAPER SIZE :

DRAWING TITLE :

REVISION :

DRAWN BY :

CLIENT :

PROJECT TITLE :

DRAWN DATE :

APPROVED BY :

APPROVED
BY

REV DRAWN
 BY

DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONDATE

REVISIONS

1:200 LS

BH

Date
MitigatedID RISK

RESIDUAL PROJECT RISKS
MITIGATION

Notes
1. Do not scale from this drawing

2. To be read in conjunction with Project Risk Register REF: XXX

3. To be read in conjunction with all other Landscape Architect''s 

drawings

SUITABILITY :

D5 P02

               
               

       
               
          
              

ALA489
ALA PROJECT CODE:

16/11/18 P02 Acoustic fence addded and trees 
quantities  adjusted 

LS BH

Proposed Tree

Existing Tree

Amenity Grass

Amenity Planting

Refer to Planting Schedule for plants specifications

Planning application boundary 

0

1m

2m

5m

10m

20m

2018/0610

Page 69 of 74

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



                   

BAE Systems, Gate 10 Landscape
Planting Design Concepts

BAE10-ALA-00-XX-L-RP-0001 |November 2018

BAE Systems
Gate10, Landscape

Page 1

Amendment received 15/01/2019

2018/0610

Page 70 of 74

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



page 2

Status: Issued for Planning
Version: PR2
Version date: 15.01.2019
Ref: ALA489 PB01
Prepared by: LS
Checked by: BH

01Planting Design - Concept Plan

The intention is to use the proposed reconfiguring of 
the layout around BAE systems gate 10 to improve the 
visual appearance of this entrance and part of the sites 
perimeter.

A strong but elegant planting scheme is proposed to 
accompany the realigned road and fence layout.
 
A key consideration in developing the design has been 
views of the site from adjacent houses on Buccleuch Dock 
Road, in particular to reduce the visual impact of the 
perimeter fence

The  proposal is for a row of semi-mature Norway Maple 
trees (Acer platanoides) set behind the fence line with a 
broad area of robust tall grasses and perennial planting in 
front of the fence.

Norway maples have been selected as they are a 
hardy tree that thrive in a variety of challenging urban 
environments and in the vicinity of coastal areas.

A planting plan and landscape maintenance and 
management plan has been prepared to describe the 
proposals in more detail

Structural Tree Planting

Amenity Planting:
Tall grasses and robust perennial planting

Proposed Access

Existing Houses

Security Fence

Acoustic Fence

Page 2

2018/0610

Page 71 of 74

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 8



page 3

02Tree Planting 
KEY

1. Acer platanoides 

Planting Design - Plant Pallet

Amenity Planting 

2. Alchemilla mollis
3. Calamagrostis x acutiflora ‘Karl Foerste’
4. Deschampsia cespitosa
5 Salvia nemorosa 
6. Sedum Autumn Joy
7. Stipa gigantea
8. Stipa tenuissima

01

02 03 04 05

06 07 08

01

Page 3

2018/0610

Page 72 of 74

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 8



page 4

03
Visualization

Page 4

2018/0610

Page 73 of 74

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 8



2018/0610

Page 74 of 74

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 8



Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies
 
Note to Members
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the
agenda today.
 
Saved Policies
 
The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan.
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless
material considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise.
 
The tilted balance under paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies
relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5 year housing land
supply. At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The
officers report will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can
be given. Under the tilted balance applications should be approved unless
 
"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the
Framework indicate development should be restricted."
 
The tilted balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a
sufficient supply of housing land.
 
Emerging Policies
 
As the emerging Local Plan is now under examination, the policies within it can be given
weight. The amount of weight each policy has is dependent upon the significance of
unresolved objections to the policy and how consistent it is with the NPPF.
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018
 
NPPF-080
Planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses
can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs
and wider opportunities for development. The approach taken should allow each area to
build on its strengths, counter any weaknesses and address the challenges of the future.

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



This is particularly important where Britain can be a global leader in driving innovation
(The Government's Industrial Strategy sets out a vision to drive productivity
improvements across the UK, identifies a number of Grand Challenges facing all
nations, and sets out a delivery programme to make the UK a leader in four of these:
artificial intelligence and big data; clean growth; future mobility; and catering for an
ageing society. HM Government (2017) Industrial Strategy: Building a Britain fit for the
future), and in areas with high levels of productivity, which should be able to capitalise
on their performance and potential.
 
NPPF-127
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;
 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;
 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);
 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;
 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and
 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning
policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards
for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for
such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard,
where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community
cohesion and resilience.
 

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



NPPF-170
Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by:
 
a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in
the development plan);
 
b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider
benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services - including the economic and other
benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland;
 
c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to
it where appropriate;
 
d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future
pressures;
 
e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air,
water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help
to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into
account relevant information such as river basin management plans; and
 
f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable
land, where appropriate.
 
Saved Local Plan 2001
 
C1
All new and redeveloped retail facilities will be expected to:
 
.;    achieve high design standards, taking into account the character of the surrounding
area and the requirement to maintain or enhance Conservation Areas and their settings;
  
.;    where practicable, provide adequate access for people whose mobility is impaired;
  
.;    result in no loss of or detriment to:  important areas of amenity open space; interests
of wildlife, landscape or nature conservation importance; or trees or landmarks of

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



importance to local character; and
  
.;    provide an acceptable level of car parking in accordance with the Cumbria Parking
Guidelines, except in cases of redevelopment where present levels must at least be
maintained.
 
C2
New retail development will be permitted in town centres. Where it is demonstrated to be
justified for any retail development to be located out of a town centre the first alternative
should be an edge of centre site, defined as within 300 metres of the town centre, with
an out of town site being the least preferred option. Any retail development outside the
town centre, whether it be edge of centre or out of centre, must be justified by the
applicant on grounds of need. In the case of Barrow an edge of centre area has been
allocated under Policy C4 although other edge-of-centre developments will be permitted
provided they comply with the criteria of Policy C3.
 
C3
Developments creating new retail floorspace (including conversions) outside the town
centres that do not serve a local need or a special one, such as vehicle sales, that
cannot be met in the town centre:
  
a)    Must be accompanied by a Retail Impact Assessment and a statement from the
proposed retail operator of that development stating their firm intention to occupy that
space subject to planning permission being granted;   
  
b)    Will be refused if they appear likely to prejudice the vitality or viability of the town
centre as a whole; and
  
c)    Subject to (b) will only be permitted if they are situated in a location which is, or can
be made accessible by a range of means of transport other than the private car and
which will not add excessively to the need to travel by private car, as well as satisfying
other planning requirements, particularly with regard to the protection of residential
amenity;
 
 
 
D21
In determining all applications submitted to it the local planning authority will have regard
to the General Design Code set out in paragraph 5.4.27 of this plan.
  

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



In towns and villages, proposals shall relate to the context provided by buildings, street
and plot patterns, building frontages, topography, established public views, landmark
buildings and other townscape elements.  Proposals that do not respect the local
context and street pattern or the scale, height, proportions and materials of surrounding
buildings and development which constitutes over development of the site by virtue of
scale, height or bulk will not be permitted, unless there is specific justification, such as
interests of sustainability, energy efficiency or crime prevention.
  
Development proposals in the countryside shall respect the diversity and distinctiveness
of local landscape character.  New farm buildings will, in general, be required to be sited
within or adjacent to an existing farm building complex or in other well screened
locations and to be subject to a complementary design and use of materials, with, where
necessary, a 'planting' scheme.
 
D60
Developments giving rise to occasional noise levels above background, which are
permissible under the other policy criteria of this Plan, will be required to show to the
planning authority's satisfaction that adequate measures have been taken to provide
reasonable noise attenuation by design and/or screening and that adequate publicity is
given beforehand of when noisy activities may occur.
 
E16
Secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the Council's adopted guidelines, will
be required in all new car parks, particularly those associated with employment, retail,
leisure and educational developments.  Also the Authority will favour the provision of
shower facilities at employment-generating developments.
 
E6
Any proposals for new vehicular access onto Hindpool Road (A5087) or that which will
result in intensified use of existing accesses will be carefully examined by the Authority
and if they are considered to have an adverse impact on the safety and free flow of
traffic will be refused.
 
E9
All development should provide for its car parking requirements. However, within the
Barrow town centre block (indicated in Proposals map 4 and where A13, B7, C5, C6 &
C7 apply) private parking provision will not be required on-site for residential or
commercial development. Parking within that area will only be available on-street or
within publicly provided off-street areas. This may require the payment of commuted
sums towards the cost of publicly provided parking in lieu of on-site parking provision.

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



Development proposals in the Barrow town centre block will further be considered
having regard to the level of public transport provision in the area and any improvements
to that provision proposed by developers.
 
F11
The floor levels of all new development must be at least 7 metres above Ordnance
Datum.
 
F15
In the case of new housing, commercial, industrial and other development on significant
sites, where appropriate, the Council will seek, by planning condition or planning
obligation under Section 106 of the 1990 Act, to provide for infrastructure requirements
and new social, recreational and community facilities, where the need for these is fairly
and reasonably related to the development concerned.  The types of facilities which may
be required, are listed in paragraph 7.3.13 and elsewhere in this Local Plan.  Provision
may be made on site, or commuted payments may be negotiated to provide facilities
elsewhere if their location can adequately serve the development site, or needs
generated by it.
 
F4
New development will be permitted if foul sewers and sewage treatment works of
adequate capacity and design are available or will be provided in time to serve the
development.  The proliferation of small private package sewage treatment plants and
other types of discharge direct to watercourses within sewered areas will not be allowed.
The use of septic tanks will, in consideration with the Environment Agency, only be
considered if connection to the mains sewerage is not feasible and only then if ground
conditions are satisfactory and the plot of land is of sufficient size to provide an
adequate subsoil drainage system.
 
F6
Proposals for new development involving sites in excess of 0.4 ha must be
accompanied by details of all land drainage arrangements.  These must be designed so
as to ensure that there is no deleterious effect on adjoining occupiers of land, important
wildlife habitats or watercourses in the vicinity.
 
G13
For the quiet enjoyment of recreation activities such as walking, cycling and horse riding
the Borough Council will protect the following designated routes from development
taking place on; or in the immediate surroundings where an interesting or visually
pleasing view would be adversely affected:-

Page 108

Agenda Item 8



  
 
 
	    The Cistercian Way
	    Haematite Trail
	    Cumbria Coastal Way
	    Public Footpaths
	    Any existing right of way joining the rights of way network
 
 
Local Plan 2017
 
Emerging Policy C3a - Water management
All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following
measures:
 
a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as defined
by Building Regulations (Approved Document G). By the installation of fittings and fixed
appliances, water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue
consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources.
 
b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage
systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water.
Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity and
contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a Drainage
Strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. Surface
water should be discharged in the following order of priority:
 
i. An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system.
ii. An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse.
iii. An attenuated discharge to public surface water sewer, highway drain or another
drainage system.
iv. An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer.
 
Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence
demonstrating why alternative options are not available.
 
c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by appropriate
maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage schemes.
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



d) On large sites, applicants should ensure that the drainage proposals are part of a
wider, holistic strategy, which coordinates the approach to drainage between phases,
between developers/landowners and over a number of years of construction.
 
e) On greenfield sites, applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the current
natural discharge from a site is at least mimicked.
 
f) On previously-developed land, applicants should target a reduction of surface water
discharge in accordance with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable
drainage produced by DEFRA. In demonstrating a reduction, applicants should include
clear evidence of existing positive connections from the site with associated calculations
on rates of discharge.
 
g) Landscaping proposals should consider what contribution the landscaping of a site
can make to reducing surface water discharge. This can include hard and soft
landscaping such as permeable surfaces.
 
h) The treatment and processing of surface water is not a sustainable solution. Surface
water should be managed at source and not transferred. Every option should be
investigated before discharging surface water into a public sewerage network. A
discharge to groundwater or watercourse may require the consent of the Environment
Agency or Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority.
 
The retrofitting of SuDS in locations that generate surface water run-off will be
supported, subject to the criteria above.
 
Emerging Policy C4 - Contaminated and Unstable Land
Contaminated Land
 
On land known to be or suspected of being contaminated, or where development may
result in the release of contaminants from adjoining land, development will only be
permitted where:
 
a) It can be demonstrated that there is no significant harm, or risk of significant harm, to
health and wellbeing and the environment, including pollution of any watercourse or
controlled waters; and
 
b) Any necessary remedial action is undertaken to safeguard users or occupiers of the
site or neighbouring land, and that the environment and any buildings or services during
development are protected from contamination.

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



 
All investigations should be carried out in accordance with the advice set out in
'Development of Potentially Contaminated Land and Sensitive End Uses - An Essential
Guide for Developers' or any subsequent update of this guidance.
 
Where the proposed use would be particularly vulnerable to the presence of
contamination (i.e. residential) the planning application must be supported by an
appropriate assessment of on site contamination including proposals for remediation in
accordance with the above mentioned document.
 
Unstable Land
 
On land known or suspected to be unstable, development will only be permitted where it
can be demonstrated that there is no significant risk of harm to health and wellbeing and
the environment, and that any necessary remedial action is undertaken to safeguard
users or occupiers of the site or neighbouring land.
 
Where the proposed use would be particularly vulnerable to land instability, the planning
application must be supported by a risk assessment report that demonstrates that
adequate and environmentally acceptable mitigation measures are in place.
 
Emerging Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy
New development must take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use
of energy efficient methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment.
Proposals will be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their
layout and orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible.
 
All new developments will be encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production
equipment, sources of renewable energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for
renewable, low carbon or decentralised energy schemes appropriate to the scale and
location of the development provided they accord with the requirements of Policy C6.
 
Emerging Policy C7 - Light Pollution
The Council will seek to minimise light pollution and applications which propose new
external lighting will be expected to demonstrate that:
 
 
a)    The proposed artificial light has no adverse impact on the locality; or
 
b)    Measures will be taken to avoid, and where appropriate mitigate, any negative

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



impacts of the effects of new lighting on local amenity resulting from the development;
 
c)    The proposal has no significant impact on a protected site or species e.g. located
on,     or adjacent to, a designated European site or where there are designated
European protected species that may be affected;
 
d)    The proposal is not in or near a protected area of dark sky or an intrinsically dark
landscape where it may be desirable to minimise new light sources;
 
e)    The proposal has no impact on wildlife (e.g. white or ultraviolet light) when being
proposed close to sensitive wildlife receptors or areas, including where the light shines
on water
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be
approved wherever possible.
 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and
environmental gains for the Borough.
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or
 

Page 112

Agenda Item 8



b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that
development should be restricted.
 
 
Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education
facilities;
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity;
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities
infrastructure;
 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly
privacy, security and natural light;
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed
development;
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other
environmental assets;
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity;
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk;
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3.
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local
Plan objectives by alternative means.
 
Emerging Policy DS5 - Design
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:
 
 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents;
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their
setting;
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment;
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas,
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



structured building layout;
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally
sourced wherever possible;
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees,
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists,
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place;
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion
and public safety;
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can
contribute to design objectives;
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and
people with disabilities;
 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the
provision of appropriate roof pitches.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy DS6 - Landscaping
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where
appropriate.
 
A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place.
 
All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees,
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses.
 
Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment.
 
In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate
run off.
 
Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.
 
Emerging Policy EC3 - Managing Development of Employment Land
Proposals for new employment uses (classes B1, B2 and B8), or the extension of
existing premises used for employment uses, will be approved subject to meeting all of
the following criteria:
 
 
a) The site is located within or directly adjoining the urban boundaries of Barrow or
Dalton, or within the development cordons identified in the housing chapter;
 
b) Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively;
 
c) The use will not unduly impact upon the residential amenities of those living nearby
due to noise, disturbance from traffic, hours of operation, external storage, light
pollution, vibration or airborne emissions including odours;
 
d) The site is capable of being satisfactorily accommodated within the highway network,
with proposals for major sites (sites over 5000m&sup2;), schemes likely to generate in

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



excess of 100 HGV movements daily, or any development that may impact on the Trunk
Road network being informed by a Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA);
 
e) The site has been designed to promote user accessibility by walking, cycling and
public transport; 
 
f) The layout of the site has suitable space for landscaping, parking (including for large
vehicles where appropriate), loading and unloading and any other operational
requirements, and responds to natural drainage flow patterns;
 
g) The proposals enhance actual or perceived community safety;
 
h) The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, waste
management, flood risk and transport implications;
 
i) Adequate protection of groundwater from pollution from the storage, handling or use of
chemicals can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Environment Agency;
especially on sites within the St. Bees Sandstone Major Aquifer as shown on the
Proposals Map;
 
j) The proposal does not use the best and most versatile agricultural land (grade 3a and
above), or impact unduly on the viability or functionality of farms;
 
k) The proposal accords with the criteria set out in the policies within the Development
Strategy Chapter, specifically those relating to sustainable development and design;
 
l) The proposal does not cause unacceptable harm to heritage assets and their setting;
 
m) The proposal should make effective use of previously developed land where
possible; and
 
n) The development must comply with Policy N3.
 
 
There may also be scope for the following types of uses to be accommodated where
they meet the criteria above: Industrial/commercial training facilities, specialised leisure
uses which cannot be accommodated centrally because of their scale or operational
requirements/impacts and small scale ancillary facilities which support the functioning of
the employment area, such as toilet facilities for drivers.
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



 
Trade counters and retailing from employment premises will be restricted to those which
are ancillary for the main operation of the B1/B2/B8 business. 
Where the settlement cordon directly adjoins a neighbouring Local Planning Authority
(LPA), the adjoining LPA's planning policies will apply on land within their boundary.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention
The design, layout and location of new development should contribute towards the
creation of a safe and accessible environment, and the prevention of crime, and fear of
crime.
 
Developers should:
 
 
a)    Ensure the design, landscaping or any feature does not create isolated or secluded
areas;
 
b)    Demonstrate the design, layout, screening/landscaping enables a natural
surveillance of the surrounding area and promotes neighbourliness;
 
c)    Incorporate adequate lighting and security measures where appropriate e.g.
communal and parking areas, taking into account the impact on light pollution, the
natural environment and residential amenity;
 
d)    Design layouts to promote ownership by residents and encourage use of communal
areas
 
e)    Create clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes that prevent unobserved
access.
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy I1 - Developer Contributions
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is
supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure, facilities and services. The
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



the main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery.
 
All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where
there is capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements /
provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency,
contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements /
improvements are made, and appropriate management arrangements are in place.
Consideration will be given to how these requirements will affect the viability of
development.
 
The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions
towards include, but are not limited to:
 
- Utilities and waste;
 
- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures;
 
- Transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any associated
facilities);
 
- Community Infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage
and geological assets and other community facilities (see 5.2.1.);
 
- Green Infrastructure (such as outdoor sports facilities, open space, parks, allotments,
play areas, enhancing and conserving biodiversity and management of environmentally
sensitive areas); and
 
- Climate change and energy initiatives through allowable solutions.
 
 
Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust
evidence where applicable.
 
Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees.
 
 
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



Emerging Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices
Development will be accessible by a range of sustainable transport options, including
walking, cycling and public transport. Early engagement with the Borough Council and
the Local Highways Authority is encouraged. Development likely to generate significant
levels of transport within isolated and poorly accessible areas will be resisted unless a
clear environmental, social or economic need can be demonstrated.
 
Proposals should provide direct and safe access to the existing footpath and cycle
network including pedestrian links between developments and bus stops to maximise
use of public transport to access green space, shopping, schools, health and other
amenities. Where this would require the provision of links beyond the development site,
such as provision of new footpaths and cycleways or a new or enhanced bus service an
appropriate planning obligation will be negotiated between the local planning authority
and the applicant.
 
Pedestrian and cycle routes within new developments must be suitably lit so as to create
a safe, attractive and useable environment for all.
 
Development proposals located on, or adjacent to, a proposed network of cycle routes
should incorporate the appropriate section of route, and / or links to it. Where
development affects the line of an existing route, the route will be required to be
reinstated, or an acceptable alternative provided. The continuing integrity of the route
should be maintained through the construction process. Routes, both interim and
replacement, should be constructed to a standard and design acceptable to the Council
and consistent with the Green Infrastructure Strategy requirements.
 
Secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the Council's adopted guidelines, will
be required in all new car parks, particularly those associated with housing,
employment, retail, leisure and educational developments. In addition the Authority will
encourage the provision of shower facilities at employment-generating developments.
 
The Council will encourage the integration of vehicle charging infrastructure within new
development, particularly commercial development.
 
Emerging Policy I5 - Travel Plans
Development which generates a significant amount of movement will require the
submission of a Travel Plan. As set out in national guidance the Travel Plan will
demonstrate how:
 
 

Page 120

Agenda Item 8



a) The needs of cyclists and pedestrians will be met and prioritised on site;
 
b) The development will help to reduce the need to travel, particularly by private car;
 
c) Relevant information about existing travel habits in the surrounding area has been
assessed;
 
d) Provision has been made for improved public transport services;
 
e) The site will safely and conveniently connect to public rights of way and the wider
green infrastructure network;
 
f) The impact of the proposed development and the forecast level of trips by all modes of
transport likely to be associated with the development, particularly of heavy goods
vehicles accessing the site, has been minimised; and
 
g) The movement of freight and goods by rail will be maximised where possible.
 
 
Where the trip reductions proposed to be achieved through a Travel Plan are to be
considered as the mitigation measure in order to make the development impact
acceptable, a developer contribution equal to the cost of providing the highway
infrastructure improvements in the form of a bond will be required.  In the event that the
Travel Plan objectives are not being met, the bond monies will be used to provide the
necessary infrastructure.  In exceptional circumstances, should a developer be unwilling
to commit to including an Action Plan within the Travel Plan, or the development
proposals are at such a preliminary stage that it is unrealistic to draw up a list of
measures, then it will be necessary to secure the outcome of the Travel Plan through a
developer contribution.
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy I6 - Parking
Proposals for new developments will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate
that adequate parking provision has been provided in consultation with the Local
Highways Authority and in accordance with the parking standards in the "Parking
Guidelines in Cumbria" SPG or any update to it.
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



 
In areas suffering from significant on-street parking problems, greater provision will be
sought where possible, or alternative arrangements will be required. When applying
parking standards each site should be assessed on its own merits and, if a developer
can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the authority that their proposed parking provision
is sufficient, the 'Parking Guidelines in Cumbria' can be relaxed in favour of the
demonstrated proposal.
 
 
The design of on and off site parking provision will be safely accessible and appropriate
to the streetscene and character of the local area. Consideration should be given to
Policy C3 (water management) and Policy DS6 (landscaping).
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy R7 - Sequential test for new retail developments in Dalton
New retail development will be permitted in Dalton Town Centre. An out of centre
location will only be permitted where clear and detailed justification that a sequentially
preferable location is unfeasible is provided by the applicant and accepted by the Local
Authority.
 
Where retail development cannot be accommodated within the town centre and planning
applications for out of centre retail development are clearly justified, preference will be
given to accessible sites that are well connected to the town centre.
 
Proposals for retail uses in out of centre locations must meet a specific local need and
must not prejudice the vitality and / or viability of the town centre as a whole.
 
Proposals for retail uses must be situated in a location which is, or can be made
accessible, by a range of means of transport other than the private car and which will
not add excessively to the need to travel by private car.
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy R9 - Impact Assessments – Retail in Dalton
Applications for development which creates new retail floorspace over 500 sq m gross
(including conversions) and/or proposals to remove goods restrictions on units over that

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



D38 Saved Local Plan 2001 
 
Applications for consent to display advertisements that would be 
detrimental by nature of their scale, height or amount or type of 
illumination to the amenities of residential properties in those areas with 
a mixture of commercial and residential uses will be refused. 
 
D40 Saved Local Plan 2001 
 
Advertising signs above the ground floor level of buildings will be 
granted consent provided that they are well designed, relate well to the 
architectural features of the property and do not harm the street scene 
by being overbearing or over intrusive. 
 
D43 Saved Local Plan 2001 
 
Proposals for illuminated advertisements will be granted consent 
provided that they would not harm the interests of visual amenity, 
including sky darkness pollution, or highway safety by nature of their 
scale, height, amount or hours of illumination. 
 
D63 Saved Local Plan 2001 
 
The Council will seek to minimise light pollution.  Details of any external 
lighting scheme required as part of any new development should be 
submitted as part of the planning application.  Applicants will be 
expected to demonstrate to the Authority that the scheme proposed is 
the minimum needed for security and working purposes and that it 
minimises the potential pollution from glare and light spillage, particularly 
to residential and commercial areas, areas of nature conservation 
importance and areas whose open and remote landscape qualities 
would be affected.  Lighting will be required to be directed to the part of 
the site where it is needed and the Authority will require measures to be 
taken to seek to ensure that it does not spread beyond the site 
boundaries or upwards into the sky.  Any approved scheme, once 
installed, will have to meet the parameters agreed in the submitted 
details. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



Emerging Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting Local Plan 
2017 
 
The Council will, through planning decisions and in fulfilling its wider 
functions, proactively manage and work with partners to protect and 
enhance the character, appearance, archaeological and historic value 
and significance of the Borough’s designated and undesignated heritage 
assets and their setting. 
 
Opportunities will also be pursued, to aid the promotion, understanding 
and interpretation of both heritage and cultural assets, as a means of 
maximising wider public benefits and in reinforcing Barrow’s distinct 
identity. 
 
Key elements which contribute to the Borough’s identity, and which will 
therefore be a priority for safeguarding and enhancing into the future, 
include: 
 
1. The Furness Abbey Scheduled Ancient Monument and its setting; 
 
2. 14th Century castles such Piel Castle and Dalton Castle and key 
religious sites and their setting; 
 
3. Barrow Town Hall, Ramsden Square and Schneider Square and 
associated statues as well as the streets and spaces which interconnect 
and provide setting for these assets; 
 
4. Wide, Victorian, tree-lined routes into and around Barrow such as 
Abbey Road and Hartington Street and the grid-iron pattern of areas of 
terraced housing in and around Barrow town centre; 
 
5. Remnants of the Borough’s industrial heritage including sandstone 
workshop buildings, the imposing former worker’s tenement blocks on 
Barrow Island, the slag bank, former iron workings and neighbourhoods 
of older traditional housing. 
 
6. Coastal features including Jubilee Bridge, Roa Island jetty, pill boxes, 
Walney and Rampside lighthouses and Cavendish Dock; 
 
7. Barrow Park, including the cenotaph and bandstand; 
 
8. Conservation areas and Listed Buildings across the Borough; 
 

Page 124

Agenda Item 8



9. Key cultural assets encompassing parklands, woodland, landscapes, 
coastlines, museums, libraries, art galleries, public art, local food and 
drink and local customs and traditions. 
 
As well as fulfilling its statutory obligations, the Council will: 
 
a) Seek to identify, protect and enhance local heritage assets; 
 
b) Promote heritage-led regeneration including in relation to 
development opportunities; 
 
c) Produce conservation area appraisals and management plans; 
 
d) Develop a positive strategy to safeguard the future of any heritage 
assets that are considered to be “at risk”;  
 
e) Adopt a proactive approach to utilising development opportunities to 
increase the promotion and interpretation of the Borough’s rich 
archaeological wealth; and 
 
f) Develop a positive heritage strategy across the Borough. 
 
Emerging Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings Local Plan 2017 
 
Proposals for works to Listed Buildings, including alterations, extensions 
or change of use and development affecting setting should not cause 
unacceptable harm to its significance, including those elements which 
contribute to their special architectural or historic interest, and setting. 
Opportunities to enhance and better reveal their significance will be 
supported. 
 
Proposals which involve substantial harm to, or loss of, a listed building 
including to its setting, will only be permitted in exceptional 
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that: 
 
a)    The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the 
site; and 
 
b)    That no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the 
medium term through appropriate marketing that will enable its 
conservation;  
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



c)    That conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable 
or public ownership is demonstrably not possible; and 
 
d)    The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site 
back into use. 
 
Emerging Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas Local Plan 2017 
 
Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will 
only be permitted where it preserves or enhances the character or 
appearance of the Area. Proposals for all new development, including 
alterations and extensions to buildings and their re-use, must be 
sensitive and appropriate to the character of the area. Any replacement 
feature should match the original where it makes a positive contribution 
to the Conservation Area and its setting. 
 
Proposals must be supported by any relevant Conservation Area 
Appraisal or Management Plan.  In particular it should respect all of the 
following: 
 
a) The character of existing architecture and any historical associations 
by having due regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, 
scale, enclosure, detailing and use of traditional materials; 
 
b) Existing hard and soft landscape features including open space, 
trees, walls and surfacing; 
 
c) Traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and 
 
d) Significant views into or out of the Areas. 
 
Proposals should also avoid the loss of public and private open space 
which makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area and its setting. 
 
Through Conservation Area Appraisals the Council will identify any 
opportunities for new development to enhance or better reveal their 
significance. 
 
 

Page 126

Agenda Item 8



size outside the Town Centre must be accompanied by a Retail Impact Assessment.
 
Applications will be refused if the development/alteration would prejudice the vitality
and/or viability of the Town Centre as a whole.
 
Subject to the above, such applications will only be permitted if they are situated in a
location which is, or can be made accessible by a range of means of transport other
than the private car and which will not add excessively to the need to travel by private
car. Applicants may be expected to enter into a Legal Agreement with the Planning
Authority to provide access and linkages where appropriate.
 
 
 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

5th February 2019 
 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0017 Emlyn Hughes House, 
Abbey Road, Barrow-
in-Furness 

Advertisement consent to display 1 high level halo 
illuminated sign, 2 internally illuminated fascia 
signs and 1 high level sign made up of non 
illuminated individual lettering. 

17 2018/0364 Crooklands Garden 
Centre, Ulverston 
Road, Dalton  

Retrospective permission for a two storey building 
(660 sqm) located on the west side of the garden 
centre for the sale and storage of garden related 
products; various structures totalling 882 sqm 
providing sales floorspace and ancillary areas; 
change of use of part of the Garden centre to non-
food retail, and the extension and amendment to 
the car park layout. 
  
 
 

51 2018/0610 Land adjacent to 
Proposed Centralised 
Training Facility 
Buccleuch Dock Road 
Barrow-in-Furness  

Amended gate position and road layout to 
Crossfields Gate (Gate 10) to allow for two way 
traffic and use by all vehicle types and new vehicle 
turning and waiting bay. New landscaped area for 
visual screening. 

 

Page 128

Agenda Item 8



  Part One 

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 5th February 2019

Reporting Officer:  Development Services  
                                 Manager (Planning &          
                                 Enforcement)   

(D)

Title: Quarterly Planning Performance Report

Summary and Conclusions: 

The determination rates have risen steadily over the past two years 
accounting period enabling Government targets being met, albeit marginally. 
Whilst there have been fluctuations due to issues such as appeals, the 
general trend is a solid base upon which to build.

Recommendations: 

That this information be noted.

Report

Attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ information, is the Quarterly Planning 
Performance Report.  This was due in December, but was held back pending 
appraisal by Management Board in that month.

The format remains as per the September report and as this is a relatively 
recent innovation I welcome any feedback from Members as to the suitability 
of the layout and scope of information presented.

The data used in this report covers the period October 2016 to September 
2018; this is a completed two year assessment period.  For some sections of 
the report, previous data from full quarters has been used for comparison 
purposes.

To give Members a wider perspective of the determination process, we have 
included a section on validation.  This represents the first step which starts 
with initial receipt and checking of an application, based upon national 
requirements and our “Local List” of guidance as to what information is 
considered necessary to register the submission as valid.  Members will see 
that nearly 60% of applications were unable to be registered due to various 
issues; examples will be items such as missing information or incomplete 
forms.  This may appear insignificant in terms of performance but can lead to 

Page 129

Agenda Item 9



“bunching”, whereby Officers receive several applications at once all with 
competing needs.

The current two year assessment period from October 2016 to September 
2018 is now at an end and the new assessment period will begin.  The way in 
which the performance assessment periods are calculated means that we 
drop the 12 months from October 2016 to September 2017 and begin the new 
period from October 2017, this means that only applications from this date 
until September 2019 are now used to assess the levels of performance.  This 
will be explained further and data shown to clarify this process in the next 
report (March 2019).

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 130

Agenda Item 9



 Barrow Borough Council 
Development Services 

Planning Applications & 
Performance 
Quarterly Report 

July 2018 – September 2018 

 

December 
2018 

Page 131

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  1   

 
  

Page 132

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  2   

Contents 

Overview - Criteria for Designation ........................................................................................................ 4 

1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 5 

2 Validation ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

3 Planning Applications ...................................................................................................................... 8 

4 Performance Target – Speed of Decision ...................................................................................... 15 

 

List of Tables & Figures 

Table 1 - Validation data ......................................................................................................................... 6 
Table 2 - Validation issues by type .......................................................................................................... 7 
Table 3 - Application data ....................................................................................................................... 8 
Table 4 - Breakdown of total applications by type ................................................................................. 9 
Table 5 - Breakdown of application categories..................................................................................... 10 
Table 6 - Application numbers by ward ................................................................................................ 12 
Table 7 - Major applications by ward ................................................................................................... 12 
Table 8 - Other applications by ward .................................................................................................... 13 
 

Figure 1 - Validation issues data ............................................................................................................. 6 
Figure 2 - Application types by percentage ............................................................................................ 9 
Figure 3 - Comparison of application types by number .......................................................................... 9 
Figure 4 - Householder application per quarter ................................................................................... 11 
Figure 5 - Extensions of time on applications ....................................................................................... 14 
Figure 6 - Current performance levels against targets ......................................................................... 15 
Figure 7 - Comparison of major developments .................................................................................... 15 
Figure 8 - Comparison of other developments ..................................................................................... 16 
 

  

Page 133

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

file://bbc-filestore/DevelopmentServices/Data%20Technician/Planning%20Performance%20Reports/December%202018/Draft%20-%20Planning%20Performance%20Report%20-%20December%202018%20-%20No%20Comments.docx#_Toc530726881
file://bbc-filestore/DevelopmentServices/Data%20Technician/Planning%20Performance%20Reports/December%202018/Draft%20-%20Planning%20Performance%20Report%20-%20December%202018%20-%20No%20Comments.docx#_Toc530726882


Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  3   

  

Page 134

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  4   

Overview - Criteria for Designation 
 
A Local Planning Authority can be designated and placed under ‘special measures’ only if the 
Secretary of State considers that an authority is not adequately performing their function of 
determining applications. 
 
In order to assess performance the Council is set targets and must determine a percentage of 
applications within a set time and to a set standard.  Not all applications are assessed, the targets 
only relate to major and other, more details on number and type of applications can be found in 
section 2. 
 
The process used for monitoring the performance has an assessment period which covers two years 
up to and including the most recent quarter, this runs from October to September.  For example, a 
two year assessment period between October 2016 and September 2018 will be used for 
designation decisions in Quarter 1 2019.  The average percentage figure for the assessment period 
as a whole is used. 
 
The performance of local planning authorities in determining major and non-major (other) 
development will be assessed separately, meaning that an authority could be designated on the 
basis of its performance for one or both.   
 
The assessment for each of these two categories of development will be against two separate 
measures of performance: 

• the speed with which applications are dealt with measured by the proportion of applications 
that are dealt with within the statutory time or an agreed extended period; and, 

• the quality of decisions made by local planning authorities measured by the proportion of 
decisions on applications that are subsequently overturned at appeal. 

 
The Secretary of State will aim to decide whether any designations should be made in the first 
quarter of each calendar year and they are reviewed annually to allow improving authorities to 
regain their determination powers. 
  

Page 135

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  5   

1 Introduction 
 
This is the second performance report which will outline the process for measuring the performance 
of Barrow Borough Council’s Development Management section in relation to determining planning 
applications.   
 
The measures of performance used are based on speed and quality of decisions made on 
applications.  In this report we are still only covering the measure of speed; once we have built up 
enough measurable data the report will also include the quality aspect of performance.  
 
Multiple areas of data relating to applications have been analysed and the results show the required 
and current levels of performance against the designation thresholds.  This has been based on a 
current staff level equivalent of 4.1 full time employees. 
 
The data used in this report covers the period October 2016 to September 2018; this is a completed 
two year assessment period.  For some sections of the report previous data from full quarters has 
been used for comparison purposes. 
 
We are constantly looking for new areas of the planning process we can monitor to give us a clearer 
picture of the overall performance.  During the final quarter of the assessment period we have 
recorded data on the validation process and will show the number of applications that have been 
validated over the assessment period and highlight some of the issues faced during this complex 
process.    
 
  

Page 136

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  6   

2 Validation 
 
The validation of applications is a process undertaken by the Planning Technician with assistance 
from the GIS Technician.  On receipt of a planning application they will check the application to 
determine whether it is complete.   
 
A valid application is comprised of: 
 

• Information requested on the standard application form 
• Mandatory national information requirements, including a Design and Access Statement 

if one is required 
• Information specified on an LPA’s local list under Section 62(3) of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 
• Any relevant fees 

Local Planning Authorities have broad powers to request information that they consider necessary in 
support of planning applications, these are known as Local Lists and guidance states they should be 
reviewed at least every two years. 
 
Table 1 shows the number of applications validated between July 2018 and September 2018 of the 
two year planning performance assessment period.  It also breaks down how many applications had 
issues, showing that 67 of the 113 applications that were validated had issues that needed to be 
resolved by the validation team.  
 

Table 1 - Validation data 

 July 2018 to September 2018 
Total Validated Applications 113 
Total Applications with Issues 67 (59.3%) 
Total Applications without Issues 46 (40.7%) 

 
Figure 1 uses the same data to show the number of validated applications that had issues against the 
number without issues and the relevant percentages. 
 
Figure 1 - Validation issues data 

 
 

46, 40.7% 
67, 59.3% 

Validation Issues 

Total Applications
without Issues

Total Applications
with Issues

Page 137

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  7   

There are various issues that cause delays within the validation process, such as; correct 
certification, problems with the plans or site plans, an issue with the fees or something simple but 
crucial like a missing signature.  All of these issues cause delays as the technician needs to chase the 
relevant person(s) to obtain the correct information. 
 
The table below shows a breakdown of the type of issues that occurred with the 67 applications that 
had validation issues during that period.  Using the data to look at the number of issues against the 
number of applications, on average there are 1.85 issues per application. 
 

Table 2 - Validation issues by type 

Types of Validation Issues July 2018 to September 2018 
Certificate of Ownership 5 
Fees 32 
Forms 24 
Plans 26 
Site Plan 11 
Supporting Information 26 
Total Number of Issues 124* 

* Applications often have more than one issue. 
 
Often the same issue needs to be revisited by the technician if the problem does not get resolved in 
the first instance, this is something that frequently occurs and it can mean that one issue takes up a 
great deal of time and multiple efforts to resolve. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 138

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  8   

3 Planning Applications 
 
Based on the equivalent of 4.1 full time members of staff and using the available data, the table 
below shows the number of applications that are currently on hand at the end of each respective 
period.  Other information regarding; applications received, applications determined, case load and 
income for the relevant periods are collated to give a 12 month average. 
 
Table 3 - Application data 

 October 2016 – June 2018 October 2016 – September 2018 
Applications On Hand  188 (at 30/06/18) 160 (at 30/09/2018) 
 Applications Received (pa) 532 520 
Applications Determined (pa) 513 519 
Case Load (pa - per officer) 129.8 126.9 
Income (pa) £217,578 £238,947 

 
There are a number of different types of planning applications that Development Management deal 
with on a daily basis.  We have grouped the differing types into two categories; these are listed 
below and show some of the main application types that fall under each category: 

• Major  
o Large scale major (all other) 
o Small scale major dwellings 
o Small scale major (all others) 

• Other 
o Householder developments 
o Change of use 
o Minor dwellings 
o Minor (all others) 

• Not Assessed Fee 
o Discharge of Conditions 
o Certificate of lawfulness 
o Non-material amendments 
o Advertisements 

• Not Assessed No Fee 
o Tree preservation orders / PD / ND / County applications 
o Listed building consent alter/extend 
o Larger homes extension consultation 

• Consultations 
o Tree preservation orders / PD / ND / County applications 
o Consultation only no decision 

 
The calculations used for obtaining the current level of performance only take into consideration the 
applications that fall into Category A. 
 
For example, during the current assessment period (to September 2018) there have been 1039 
applications in total but only 597 (57.5%) of those are used to calculate the performance 
percentage. 
 
 

Category A 
Used to assess 
performance 

Category B 
Not used to 

assess 
performance 

Page 139

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  9   

Table 4 - Breakdown of total applications by type 

  October 2016 to June 2018 October 2016 to September 2018 
Application Type No of Applications Percentage No of Applications Percentage 
Major 32 3.44% 37 3.56% 
Other 493 53.07% 560 53.90% 
Not Assessed Fee 202 21.74% 218 20.98% 
Not Assessed No Fee 111 11.95% 127 12.22% 
Consultations 91 9.80% 97 9.34% 
Total Applications 929 100.00% 1039 100.00% 

 
Figure 2 and 3 illustrate the number of applications in each category (percentage and total number) 
to show the amount of applications that count towards the current performance level and the ones 
that are not assessed but still have to be dealt with in a timely manner. 
 
Figure 2 - Application types by percentage 

 

Figure 3 - Comparison of application types by number 

3.44% 

53.07% 21.74% 

11.95% 
9.80% 

Applications Types - October 2016 to 
June 2018 

Major

Other

Not Assessed
Fee
Not Assessed
No Fee
Consultations

3.56% 

53.90% 20.98% 

12.22% 
9.34% 

Application Types - October 2016 to 
September 2018 

Major

Other

Not Assessed
Fee

Not Assessed
No Fee

Consultations

32 

493 

202 
111 91 

929 

37 

560 

218 
127 97 

1039 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Major Other Not Assessed
Fee

Not Assessed
No Fee

Consultations Total
Applications

N
um

be
r o

f A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Application Types 

Comparison of application numbers by type 

October 2016 to June 2018 October 2016 to September 2018

Page 140

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  10
  

Breaking the two categories down further shows specifically which types of applications are the most frequent and which are the highest percentage for 
each category. 
 
Table 5 - Breakdown of application categories 

  October 2016 to June 2018 October 2016 to September 2018 

Application Type No of Applications Percentage No of Applications Percentage 
Category A – Major & Other (based on 525 applications) Category A – Major & Other (based on 597 applications) 

Small Scale Major Dwellings 20 3.81% 

 

 

 

 

 

23 3.85% 
Small Scale Major (all others) 7 1.33% 9 1.51% 
Householder Developments 280 53.33% 310 51.93% 
Minor (all others) 114 21.71% 134 22.45% 
Change of Use 54 10.29% 64 10.72% 
Minor Dwellings 32 6.10% 38 6.37% 

Application Type Category B – Not Assessed Fee, Not Assessed No Fee 
& Consultations (based on 404 applications) 

Category B – Not Assessed Fee, Not Assessed No Fee 
& Consultations (based on 442 applications) 

Discharge of Conditions 76 18.81% 82 18.55% 
Certificate of Lawfulness  40 9.90% 44 9.95% 
Advertisements 35 8.66% 38 8.60% 
Non-material Amendments 33 8.17% 36 8.14% 
TPO / PD / ND / County Applications 59 14.60% 64 14.48% 
Larger Homes Extension Consultation 32 7.92% 32 7.24% 
Listed Building Consent Alter/Extend 27 6.68% 38 8.60% 
Consultation Only No Decision 71 17.57% 76 17.19% 

 
Looking at the table above and the application types that affect the performance scores (Category A) you can see that in both periods the most prevalent 
application type is householder development, accounting for over half of the total number of Category A applications. 
  P

age 141

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  11
  

Comparing the two periods shows that Development Management received 30 householder applications between July 2018 and September 2018.  The 
chart below displays the number of householder applications for each quarter during the current assessment period and using the data we can calculate 
that the department receives on average, 39 householder applications per quarter. 
 
Figure 4 - Householder application per quarter 

 
 

 

  

33 

44 

34 

45 

37 

46 

41 

30 

39 39 

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Oct 16 - Dec 16 Jan 17 - Mar 17 Apr 17 - Jun 17 Jul 17 - Sept 17 Oct 17 - Dec 17 Jan 18 - Mar 18 Apr 18 - Jun 18 Jul 18 - Sept 18

Householder Applications   

Householder Applications Average Indicator

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  12
  

The tables below show a breakdown of the Category A applications (majors & others) on a ward by ward basis between October 2016 and September 2018.  
The overall figures in Table 6 clearly show the total number of applications that were received from each ward and the equivalent percentage level.  Tables 
7 and 8 give you a further breakdown into the application types for each ward. 
 
Table 6 - Application numbers by ward 

Overall Totals 
              

  Barrow 
Island Central Dalton 

North 
Dalton 
South Hawcoat  Hindpool Newbarns Ormsgill Parkside Risedale Roosecote Walney 

North 
Walney 
South Total 

Total 25 23 70 72 70 69 57 26 30 31 47 28 49 597 

Total Percentage 4.19% 3.85% 11.73% 12.06% 11.73% 11.56% 9.55% 4.36% 5.03% 5.19% 7.87% 4.69% 8.21% 100.00% 

 
Table 7 - Major applications by ward  

Majors 
              

Application Types Barrow 
Island Central Dalton 

North 
Dalton 
South Hawcoat  Hindpool Newbarns Ormsgill Parkside Risedale Roosecote Walney 

North 
Walney 
South Total 

1 - Large Scale Major 
Dwellings 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

6 - All Other Large Scale 
Major Developments 

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

7 - Small Scale Major 
Dwellings 

0 0 1 5 2 4 4 1 4 2 0 0 0 23 

8 - Small Scale Major 
Offices/R&D/Light Industry  

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

9 - Small Scale Major General 
Industry/Storage/Warehousing  0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

10 - Small Scale Major Retail 
and Service  

0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

12 - All Other Small Scale 
Major Developments 

2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4 0 9 

Total 4 1 4 5 2 4 4 2 4 2 1 4 0 37 

Total Percentage 10.81% 2.70% 10.81% 13.51% 5.41% 10.81% 10.81% 5.41% 10.81% 5.41% 2.70% 10.81% 0.00% 100.00% 

 

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  13
  

Table 8 - Other applications by ward 

Others 
              

Application Types Barrow 
Island Central Dalton 

North 
Dalton 
South Hawcoat  Hindpool Newbarns Ormsgill Parkside Risedale Roosecote Walney 

North 
Walney 
South Total 

13 - Dwellings 0 6 3 3 3 9 4 2 1 4 2 2 0 39 

14 - Offices/R&D/Light 
Industry 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 

16 - Retail and Service 3 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 

18 - All Other Minor 
Developments 12 8 21 18 14 25 5 5 4 2 10 5 8 137 

20 - Change of Use 2 7 6 3 1 26 1 2 6 6 0 2 1 63 

21 - Householder 
Developments 2 1 36 43 50 0 42 15 15 17 34 15 40 311 

Total 21 22 66 67 68 65 53 24 26 29 46 24 49 560 

Total Percentage 3.75% 3.93% 11.79% 11.96% 12.14% 11.61% 9.46% 4.29% 4.64% 5.18% 8.21% 4.29% 8.75% 100.00% 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

 P
age 144

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  14 

The planning application process is complex and on occasion there may be a need for an extension 
of time on top of the original target time.  During the October 2016 – September 2018 period there 
were 1039 applications in total and of those 144 applications required an extension of time.  
 

 
Out of the 144 applications that required an extension of time 49 (34.03%) were householder 
applications, making them the most frequent type of application to need an extension. 
 
There are many reasons for a time extension and they can be very specific depending on the 
individual case, with the most common reason for an extension of time being for amendments to 
plans.  During this period 74 (51.39%) of the extensions were required due to the need for 
amendments.    
 
Even with the extensions in place we still have to meet the new deadlines or the applications will be 
classed as over time and this will have a negative impact on the performance levels.  At present we 
only have one application that is passed the extended timeframe; this has remained the same from 
the first report.     
 
 
 

895, 86.14% 

144, 13.86% 
Extensions of Time 

(correct as of 23/10/2018) 

No Extension of Time

Extension of Time

Figure 5 - Extensions of time on applications 

Page 145

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  15 

4 Performance Target – Speed of Decision 
 
The current performance target levels for speed of decisions are as follows: 

• 60% for Major Development 

• 70% for Non-major Development (Other) 
 
Figure 6 shows the current level of performance for application determination on both major and 
non-major developments (other) during the assessment period October 2016 to September 2018. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For comparison purposes the performance levels from above have been used and compared with 
those from the previous quarters.  Every two year period has a 12 month starting point so the period 
between October 2016 and September 2017 is used as the initial baseline.  Figures 7 and 8 use the 
baseline data and also shows how the second year of the assessment period progresses quarter by 
quarter.  
 
Figure 7 - Comparison of major developments 

 

68.8% 

59.1% 
54.2% 

57.1% 62.9% 

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

Oct16-Sep17 Oct16-Dec17 Oct16-Mar18 Oct16-Jun18 Oct16-Sep18

Major

Major Target

Target for Majors 
60% 

Current 
Performance 

62.9% 

Difference 
+2.9% 

Current 
Performance 

71.9% 

Target for Others 
70% 

Difference 
+1.9% 

Figure 6 - Current performance levels against targets 

Page 146

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Quarterly Report December 2018 

Barrow Borough Council  16 

 

Figure 8 - Comparison of other developments 

 
 
Analysing the data from the Figures 7 and 8 clearly shows that over the past three quarters we have 
seen an upward trend in both application categories.  In the ‘majors’ we have seen increases of 2.9% 
and 4.8% and for the ‘others’ the increases are 2.3% and 2.6% for the same periods.  Due to the 
steady increases in both areas the target levels for speed of decision has been exceeded. 
 
The current two year assessment period from October 2016 to September 2018 is now at an end 
and the new assessment period will begin.  The way in which the performance assessment periods 
are calculated means that we drop the 12 months from October 2016 to September 2017 and begin 
the new period from October 2017, this means that only applications from this date until September 
2019 are now used to assess the levels of performance.  This will be explained further and data 
shown to clarify this process in the next report (March 2019). 
 
      
  

64.8% 

68.1% 

67.0% 

69.3% 

71.9% 

60.00%

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

Oct16-Sep17 Oct16-Dec17 Oct16-Mar18 Oct16-Jun18 Oct16-Sep18

Other

Other Target

Page 147

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Services 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness      
Cumbria      
LA14 2LD 
     
Website: www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/ 
 

 

Page 148

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/

	Agenda
	5 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	plan.pdf (p.1-5)
	df3ec7bf-c258-42ec-9677-468fa152dd84.pdf (p.6-9)

	8 Planning Applications (Booklet attached)
	2019/0017 Emlyn Hughes House
	Consultation Responses
	Officer Assessment
	Recommendation

	2018/0364 Crooklands Garden Centre
	Consultation Responses
	Officer Assessment
	Recommendation 

	2018/0610 Land adjacent to Proposed Centralised Training Facility 
	Consulation Responses
	Officer Assessment 
	Recommendation 

	Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies 
	Index

	9 Quarterly Planning Performance Report
	Appendix 1 - Performance Report
	Overview - Criteria for Designation
	1 Introduction
	2 Validation
	3 Planning Applications
	4 Performance Target – Speed of Decision



